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Notice of Annual General Meeting

R RAFEXEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an annual general meeting (the
“Meeting”) of China Outdoor Media Group Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Unit 1103, 11/F., ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central,
Hong Kong on 3 December 2010, Friday at 11:00 a.m. for the

following purposes:

To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements

of the Company and its subsidiaries and the reports of the directors

(the *

‘Directors”) and independent auditor of the Company for the

year ended 30 June 2010.

By Order of the Board
Ng Ka Sim
Company Secretary

Hong

Kong, 22 October 2010

Registered office:
Unit 1803, 18/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre
No. 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Notes:

(1

@)

(©)

)

(©)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint
one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the proxy form completed in accordance with the
instructions set out therein, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed (or a notarially certified copy of
that power or authority), must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company situated at Unit 1803, 18/F., Sun Hung Kai Centre, No. 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in
writing or, in the case of a corporation, must be under its seal or under the
hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the sender who tenders a vote,
whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes
of the other joint holders, and for this purpose, seniority will be determined
by the order in which the names stand in the register in respect of the joint
holding.

The proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the
Meeting and at any adjournment thereof in person to represent you.
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Directors and Senior Management's Biographie

EFAEREERBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 39, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in November
2007 and Chairman of Nomination Committee in July 2008. Mr. Lau
has about 10 years’ experience in corporate finance transactions and
investments, and managerial position involving listed and non-listed
companies in Hong Kong. He has now carrying out business in media
industry. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
(Finance) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a
Bachelor of Electronic Engineering in Computer (Hons) from the City
University of Hong Kong in 1993. He is an executive director and
chairman of China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited, ("CPEC")
which is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. LU Liang, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in June 2002. Mr. Lu attained a Bachelor of Science
in Computer Science from the Harbin University of Science and
Technology and a Master’s Degree in Management of Information
System from the Harbin Institute of Technology. He had worked
in China Great Wall Industry Corporation, an affiliate of China
National Space Administration in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). He has over 14 years of extensive experience in an
information technology field in the PRC, specialising in development
of information technology and telecommunication network. Mr. Lu
has participated in property development projects in PRC, including
planning and design, construction, sales and marketing, and property
management. He has accumulated over more than 10 years valuable
experience in property development and management business.

Mr. NG Yan, aged 68, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in May 2003. Mr. Ng had been a lecturer in Shanghai
Engineering College for 11 years. Since 1990, Mr. Ng has been
specialised in import and export business and investment including
property development business.

Mr. TANG Lap Chin, Richard, aged 57, is the Chief Operating Officer
of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in December 2009. He joined the Group in November 2007
upon his retirement from the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Tang had completed 34 years of public
service, including 3 years in the Fire Services Department and 31 years
with the Police Force. He was holding the rank of Chief Inspector of
Police before his retirement. During his service in the Police Force, he
had held key positions in different departments acquiring extensive
experience in the fields of investigation, operation, training, staff
relation, public relation and human resource management.
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Directors and Senior Management's Biographies

EFAREREERBRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Kwong Choi, Alexander, aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2003. He was the Business Development Manager of New York Life
Insurance Worldwide Limited. He had been appointed the Managing
Director of Sky Fortune Travel and the Assistant Manager—Japan
Project of Hong Kong Tourist Association.

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2003. Mr. Cheng was awarded a Bachelor Degree in Economic by
the Beijing Economic College. He specialised in the field of foreign
exchange in the PRC for over 11 years and his authorities on
economic and foreign exchange was fully recognised when he had
been appointed the Deputy director of the office of the PRC Foreign
Exchange Management Bureau, the Director of non-trade Bureau (3E
& 5 iR ), the Director of Inspection Bureau (1 &gz iz &) and a
senior economist, at around 1989.

Mr. LAW Tai Yan, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company in April 2005. He has over 17 years relevant experience
in accounting and auditing field. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. NG Ka Sim, aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Company. She joined the
Group in January 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Ng worked in
a multinational accounting firm and has over 10 years’ experience in
auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Ng
obtained a Bachelor of Accountancy in Australia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWAS

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition

On 4 December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with
Fully Wealthy Inc. (the “Bondholder”), an independent third party, for
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of GMG Media Group
Limited ("GMG Media"”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. GMG Media was principally engaged in investment
holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in operating chain broadcasting
networks of large-screen television channels at shopping malls and
department stores in the PRC. The consideration of the acquisition of
approximately HK$1,241.9 million was satisfied by (i) the allotment
and issuance of 100.0 million new shares of the Company, credited
as fully paid, in the sum of HK$13.0 million; and (i) the issuance of
convertible loan notes, carrying no interest for a term of 5 years at a
conversion price of HK$0.13 for each new share of the Company, in
the principal amount of HK$1,228.9 million.

The conditions under the agreement was fulfilled and the acquisition
had been completed on 22 July 2010. The consideration was satisfied
by the Company through allotment and issuance of 100.0 million
new shares of the Company and issuance of convertible loan notes in
the principal amount of HK$1,228.9 million. Details of the acquisition
are set out in a circular issued by the Company on 26 March 2010
and announcements dated 26 February 2010,19 April 2010, 27 April
2010 and 22 July 2010.

On 13 August 2010, the Company and the Bondholder entered into
a deed (the “Deed”) to alter and restate the terms of convertible
loan notes in the principal amount of HK$1,228.9 million. On 17
August 2010, the Company and the Bondholder entered into a
supplemental deed to amend certain terms of the Deed. The Deed
and supplemental deed had been approved by the shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 15 September 2010. Details
of the amendments are set out in a circular issued by the Company
on 29 August 2010 and announcements dated 13 August 2010, 17
August 2010, 29 August 2010 and 15 September 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWAS

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

Disposal and discontinued operation

During the year, China New Media Company Limited (“China New
Media”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a related company,
China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited (“CPEC"), to dispose
4% equity interests of iKanTV Limited ("iKanTV"), a 51% owned
subsidiary of China New Media, at a total consideration of HK$9.2
million satisfied by setting off the outstanding loan and interest
payable due to CPEC. Thereafter, the Group discontinued operation
of television advertising services in Hong Kong. The disposal was
completed on 30 September 2009. Details of the disposal are set out
in announcements issued by the Company on 27 August 2009 and
30 September 2009.

Connected Transactions
The Group has entered into the following connected transactions
during the year and up to the date of this report:

(a) Sale and purchase agreement
During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPEC to dispose 4% equity
interests of iKanTV, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group, at
a total consideration of HK$9.2 million, satisfied by setting off
the outstanding loan and interest payable due to CPEC.

(b) Services agreements
On 2 July 2010, the Company entered into agreements with
iKanTV and China Post E-Commerce Group Limited (“CPG"),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CPEC, pursuant to which iKanTV and CPG shall
provide advertising services and administration of websites and
customer services supports to the Group commencing from 5
July 2010 and 1 August 2010 (or such later date as the parties
may agree) for consideration of HK$4.0 million and HK$2.0
million respectively.

(c) Change of terms of convertible loan notes

On 13 August 2010, the Company and the Bondholder
entered into the Deed to alter and restate the terms of
convertible loan notes in the principal amount of HK$1,228.9
million. On 17 August 2010, the Company and the
Bondholder entered into a supplemental deed to amend
certain terms of the Deed. The Deed and supplemental deed
had been approved by the shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 September 2010. Details of the
amendments are set out in a circular issued by the Company
on 29 August 2010 and announcements dated 13 August
2010, 17 August 2010, 29 August 2010 and 15 September
2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWAS

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

Connected Transactions (cont’d)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of his beneficial interest in CPEC. Accordingly, the entering into
the agreements constituted connected transactions of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Mr. Jiang Qi Hang is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of his beneficial interest in Fully Wealthy Inc. and he is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, the change of terms
of convertible loan notes constituted connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Except for the aforesaid, during the year and up to the date of this
report, no other connected transactions were entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a connected person as
defined under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The turnover generated from provision of outdoor media and
advertising services in the PRC and media related services were
presented as continuing operations while the turnover generated
from provision of television advertising services in Hong Kong and
investments in properties for leasing and trading were presented as
discontinued operations.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, loss attributed to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$10.0 million (2009: HK$46.9
million). The improvement was mainly attributable to the following
factors. (1) During the year, provision of outdoor media and
advertising services in the PRC business remained the major source
of our income. The outdoor media and advertising services in the
PRC business segment contributed a loss of approximately HK$7.5
million (2009: profit of HK$12.5 million). The decrease in this business
segment result was mainly due to the Group had signed several
advertising contracts with different enterprises in the PRC which
advertisement mediums were located in Beijing but the Group was
unable to secure any order to place advertisement in the mediums
provided by such enterprises. (2) No impairment loss made for trade
receivables for the year (2009: approximately HK$5.1 million). (3)
No impairment loss made for goodwill allocated to any of the cash
generating units for the year (2009: approximately HK$22.9 million).
(4) During the year, the Group gained profits from discontinued
operations of approximately HK$10.8 million (2009 (restated): loss of
HK$16.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWAS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group’s total turnover
amounted to approximately HK$25.1 million, representing an
decrease of 47.2% compared with that of 2009. Details of the
decrease in turnover are discussed below:

Media and advertising — PRC segment

Turnover from the provision of outdoor media and advertising services
in the PRC for t he year ended 30 June 2010 was approximately
HK$23.6 million (2009: HK$37.7 million). Turnover during the year
was mainly contributed by Shanghai Win Advertising Media Co., Ltd..
Gross loss from provision of outdoor media and advertising services in
the PRC for the year was approximately HK$5.1 million (2009: gross
profit of HK$17.3 million). The decrease was mainly due to the Group
had signed several advertising contracts with different enterprises in
the PRC which advertisement mediums were located in Beijing but
the Group was unable to secure any order to place advertisement in
the mediums provided by such enterprises.

Media related segment

Turnover from the media related segment by providing media
consultancy services for the year ended 30 June 2010 was
approximately HK$0.1 million (2009: HK$Nil).

Television advertising — Hong Kong segment (discontinued
operation)

Turnover from the provision of television advertising services in Hong
Kong for the year ended 30 June 2010 was approximately HK$1.4
million (2009: HK$0.6 million). Turnover during the year was mainly
contributed by iKanTV, which had been disposed by the Group in
September 2009. Gross profit from provision of television advertising
services in Hong Kong for the year was approximately HK$0.6 million
(2009: HK$0.1 million).

Property investment segment (discontinued operation)

The Group did not have turnover from the operating segment of
property investment for the year ended 30 June 2010 due to its
operation was discontinued in April 2009 (2009: approximately
HK$9.2 million).

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: Nil).

PROSPECTS

Upon completion of the disposal of iKanTV and its subsidiary, the
Group is no longer engaged in the provision of television advertising
services in Hong Kong. The outdoor media and advertising services in
the PRC becomes the core business of the Group and the Group will
focus its resources in this business segment.

10 China Outdoor Media Group Limited Annual Report 2010
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PROSPECTS (cont'd)

Due to The World Exposition 2010 (“Expo 2010") is held in the
city of Shanghai, it is expected that it may bring forth new business
opportunities for the Group for sustainable growth and may further
strengthen the advertising business of the Group. The strategic
location of Shanghai may also attract more opportunities for the
Group's outdoor media and advertising services business during and
after the Expo 2010.

Besides, upon completion of the acquisition of GMG Media, the
Group believes the acquisition will enable the Group to expand into
a new line of business segment of operating chain broadcasting
networks of large-screen television channels at shopping malls
and department stores in the PRC, and will enhance the operation
base and the future income base of the Group. In addition, the
acquisition will create meaningful synergies and strengthen the overall
competitiveness of the Group, particularly the capability of providing a
wider scope of media advertising and media business related services
to client, the potential of cross-selling media and advertising services
to clients with different requirements and the potential benefit to the
Company in better allocating and managing resources in the Group.

The Group will continue its focus and effort to expand the outdoor
media advertising and media related business and continue to explore
potential investment opportunities in Hong Kong and the PRC that
can benefit the Group in the long term. The Group will also place
emphasis on the improvement of operational efficiency and cost
control in order to improve its financial performance and position.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

a. On 4 December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with the Bondholder, an independent third party, for
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of GMG Media,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
consideration of the acquisition of approximately HK$1,241.9
million was satisfied by (i) the allotment and issuance of
100.0 million new shares of the Company, credited as fully
paid, in the sum of HK$13.0 million; and (ii) the issuance of
convertible loan notes, carrying no interest for a term of 5
years at a conversion price of HK$0.13 for each new share of
the Company, in the principal amount of HK$1,228.9 million.

The acquisition was approved by shareholders on 19 April
2010. The conditions under the agreement was fulfilled and
the acquisition had been completed on 22 July 2010. The
consideration was satisfied by the Company through allotment
and issuance of 100.0 million new shares of the Company
and issuance of convertible loan notes in the principal amount
of HK$1,228.9 million. Details of acquisition are set out in
a circular issued by the Company on 26 March 2010 and
announcements dated 26 February 2010,19 April 2010, 27
April 2010 and 22 July 2010.

A S ()
ER2010F B S ([2010118 | ) £ H/ETEY - 718
R AREBERS ZHEERIBETEE - WAtk
REEZ BEEER - HFZEBEAE IR 2010t 1E
A REEZARERZ PINERE M ESRISESRE
BB -

SN - RTERREEGMG Mediafk - AEEEE - K
BENAKEEASETREBYBSLEERERZE
FERBBEHERPR 2AEBRE - XEAE
B2 AR B RKE IR o toh - WEBREEESR
BEZBRE  WREARE 2 BEHRF N - 55
EAFEFRHE RS KBRS MREEHAMRY
ZREN - MEPRHUNATRAERZBERIHEREN
BERBZENAREEAR D EEEEAEHER
EHARRBE R EERE

AEBSFHEET RBNINERAEENFINERE
ERRBERER  YREERTETEHNEEER
BEHE  USAREREYE - ARETIIEREK
B R PRAREHE - iR A M RIR RO -

EEH%ZER

a. R-IZTZNF+-ANAB  NEBBRE BB
B 2EEBBE A HERERLEE
LZEEFEMKZ 2 ATIGMG MediaZ 282 3
TR A - Ug BB 491,241,900,000/8 7T + I
AR S ER : (1)482013,000,00078 7T LARLD
2% [2 8417 100,000,000 % A BR 7 {EELE 2 AR
RIFTAR (i) BT Rl B EFIR0.13E T
HBADNG—BFRH 2R E5FHASER
1,228,900,00078 7T 2 A AR B AR ©

REWEER-_Z—FNA+LAEREL
Ao BEE T 2R BEEENK  WBENR =
—ZFL A+ -H%EK - AR BB B BA %
2 %£17100,000,000 % A2 B #T I (0 K BE 1T 7R
$©%81,228,900,000/8 02 Al AR B EIE X
HRE - BREKEZFBRERAAR IR Z—
TFEZA-+RNABNZENEBRA T —
ZE_A-+,8 —Z-ZFEPA+IE -
—E-ZEFNA_++HER-TE—ZFLA
—+ZRZAHEA -

TEPIMKBEEERAT —T-TFEFRH 11



Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWAS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (cont’d)

a. (cont'd)
On 13 August 2010, the Company and the Bondholder,
entered into the Deed to alter and restate the terms of
convertible loan notes in the principal amount of HK$1,228.9
million. On 17 August 2010, the Company and the
Bondholder entered into a supplemental deed to amend
certain terms of the Deed. The Deed and supplemental deed
had been approved by the shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 September 2010. Details of the
amendments are set out in a circular issued by the Company
on 29 August 2010 and announcements dated 13 August
2010, 17 August 2010, 29 August 2010 and 15 September
2010.

On 5 October 2010, the Bondholder exercised the conversion
right to convert the convertible loan notes in the principal
amount of HK$65.0 million into 500.0 million new ordinary
shares of the Company.

b. On 26 August 2010 and 18 October 2010, a total of 15.0
million warrants were exercised by the warrant holders for the
issuance of 15.0 million new ordinary shares of the Company
at HK$0.2 per share. All the subscribed ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

On 10 August 2009, 21 August 2009, 14 September 2009 and 28
December 2009, a total of 50.0 million warrants were exercised for
the issuance of 50.0 million new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
a price of HK$0.2 to generate the working capital of the Group of
HK$10.0 million.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group has net current assets of approximately
HK$69.6 million (2009: HK$65.7 million) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$67.2 million (2009:
HK$66.6 million). The increase in equity attributable to owners of
the Company as compared with last year was mainly attributable to
funding of HK$10.2 million generated from the issuance of warrants
and ordinary shares during the year, less total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$9.6
million incurred during the year. Bank and cash balances amounted
to approximately HK$10.7 million as at 30 June 2010 (2009: HK$4.5
million).
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THEFWAS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (cont'd)

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had short-term borrowings of
approximately HK$1.7 million (2009: HK$4.4 million) and long term
borrowings of approximately HK$9.9 million (2009: HK$9.0 million).
The loans were subject to interests at prevailing commercial lending
rate. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2010, which was
computed on the basis of the aggregate borrowings divided by the
amount of total assets, was 12.3% (2009: 12.1%).

As the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the
Group's exposure to exchange rate risk is limited. It is the Group’s
treasury policy to manage its foreign currency exposure only when
its potential financial impact is material to the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor its foreign exchange position and, if necessary,
utilise hedging tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency
exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2009 and 2010, there was no charge on the Group’s
assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of contingent liabilities are set in note 30 to the financial
statements.

COMMITMENTS
Details of commitments are set out in notes 32 and 34 to the financial
statements.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has 28 employees (including Directors) as at 30 June 2010
(2009: 46). The Group recruits and promotes individuals based on
their performance and development potential in the positions held.
Remuneration package is determined with reference to an employee’s
performance and the prevailing salary scale in the market. In addition,
the Group adopts a share option scheme for eligible employees
(including Directors) to provide incentives to participants for their
contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP’S SUBSIDIARIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 30.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 107 and 108.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and
of the Company during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association (”Articles”) or the laws of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
30 June 2010.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 62.6% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 23.8%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers amounted for approximately 66.0% of the total purchase
for the year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 23.6%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

Mr. Lu Liang

Mr. Ng Yan

Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (appointed on 15 December 2009)
Mr. Chan Sing Fai (retired on 8 December 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing

Mr. Law Tai Yan

In accordance with Articles 94 and 102 (A) of the Company’s Articles,
Messrs. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Cheng
Sheung Hing, Law Tai Yan, Lu Liang, Ng Yan and Tang Lap Chin,
Richard shall retire at the 2010 annual general meeting to be held
on 3 December 2010, Friday at 11:00 a.m. (“AGM") and shall offer
themselves for re-election as Directors of the Company at the AGM.

The terms of office of the independent non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles.
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Messrs. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Cheng Sheung Hing
and Law Tai Yan, and as at the date of this report still considers them
to be independent.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 5 and 6 to the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, China
New Media Company Limited (“China New Media”) entered into an
agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of a related company,
China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited (“CPEC"), to dispose 4%
equity interests of iKanTV Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary of China
New Media, at a total consideration of HK$9.2 million satisfied by
setting off the outstanding loan and interest payable due to CPEC.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is interested in the transaction to the extent
that he is also a beneficial shareholder of CPEC.

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
paid a consultancy fee of HK$0.4 million to H.G. Energy Investment
Holding Company Limited (“H.G.”). Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard is
interested in the transaction to the extent that he is also a benefical
shareholder of H.G..

Apart from the above, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
At 30 June 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph WRALE

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Name of director
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Number of options
directly beneficially owned

HEEBESRBANBRENE

Mr. Lu Liang =i 3,200,000
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard BSS7 RS AE 8,403,175
11,603,175

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2010, none of the Directors
or chief executive had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share option scheme” below, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the ”“Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest
of, the Group. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 27
to the financial statements.

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options granted
during the year, calculated using the Binomial option pricing model
(“Binomial Model”) as at the date of grant of the options:

Number of options

outstanding as at

1 July 2009
R=ZEhFtA—H
i RATEZ BREH

Grantee

Lapsed during

ESREROIEFHNER

BT X[ B E | — sk ERS - FAMEBES
FIREZBEBRAM 18R T REREHERBAR
AR RESFME S - REEETEREMNZERE
A+ AR B SHE AT B D R B2 BRI 2 P
FEEFWEN T EM AR LSRR

BREsE
RNAREBET—IEERESE ([5H8])) - EEREE
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BB R R TRS D ARA AR EB ATz o 5HEIFFER
B ISR M2 7R & -
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Number of options
outstanding as at
30 June 2010
theyear R=Z2—ZEFXH=1+H
FRAX HRTEZBREHE

Theoretical value
of share options

BRENEREE
HK$

S
BJL

Mr. Chan Sing Fai BRAEGESL & 2,200,000 (2,200,000) - -
Mr. Lu Liang BRETE 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 1,048,640
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard  #F57 A4 8,403,175 - 8,403,175 2,441,122
Consultants EH 63,829,525 - 63,829,525 14,516,377
Other employees HihfES 11,180,000 (960,000) 10,220,000 2,439,810

88,812,700 (3,160,000) 85,652,700 20,445,949

The Binomial Model is a generally accepted method of valuing
options. The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations
were the dates on which the options were granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cont'd)

The values of share options calculated using the Binomial Model
are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent
limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any changes to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30 June 2010, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

Capacity and

nature of interest

B REHEME

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph  ZI5:= 4 Beneficial
Beneficial owner

BREAA

Win Today Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2010, no person, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions are set out in notes 11(b), 24,
33 and 35(a) to the financial statements. Except for the aforesaid,
during the year and up to the date of this report, no other connected
transactions were entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 35
to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008
were audited by NCN CPA Limited. The financial statements for the
years ended 30 June 2009 and 2010 were audited by RSM Nelson
Wheeler.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler
will be put at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Director

Hong Kong, 22 October 2010
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIHSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the
management are committed to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance as good corporate governance
can safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate
value. The Board continuously reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Group form time to time
to ensure that business activities and decision making possesses are
regulated in a proper manner.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 30 June
2010, except for the deviation from provisions A.4.1 and A.2.1 of the
Code.

Pursuant to A.4.1 of the Code, independent non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election while
all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Under the period of review, all independent non-
executive Directors of the Company were not appointed for a specific
term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings (“AGM") of the Company in line with the
Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the
Company'’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the Code.

For the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code, please refer
to Corporate Governance Report heading “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic planning
and development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and
policies of the Group while delegating day-to-day operations of
the Group to management. Besides, each member of the Board is
expected to make a full and active contribution to the Board'’s affairs
and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.
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ERELIHRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

As at 30 June 2010, the Board comprises seven members including,
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lu Liang,
Mr. Ng Yan and Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard as executive Directors
and Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
and Mr. Law Tai Yan as independent non-executive Directors. One of
the three independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the Listing Rules.
Details of their respective experiences and qualifications are included
in the “Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies” section of
this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board
accounts for the interests of all shareholders and that all issues are
considered in an objective manner. The Company has received annual
confirmations of independence from the three independent non-
executive Directors and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board as
at 30 June 2010. All of them are free to exercise their individual
judgement.

BOARD MEETINGS

For the year ended 30 June 2010, there were 31 board meetings held
to discuss the Group’s development strategies, investment projects
and the operational and financial performance of the Group. The
attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings is as follows:
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Number of
attendance
B IR R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph IR E 28/31
Mr. Chan Sing Fai (retired on 8 December 2009) BRAMEEE (R ZZETNF+TZANBRE) 12/31
Mr. Lu Liang B8 A 18/31
Mr. Ng Yan RRkE 1/31
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard BT AISEAE
(appointed on 15 December 2009) (RZZENFT_ATHREEZME) 11/31
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BESFE 5/31
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing LR ST 2/31
Mr. Law Tai Yan BERLE 3/31

22 China Outdoor Media Group Limited Annual Report 2010



Corporate Governance Report

ERELIHSE

BOARD MEETINGS (cont'd)

The Company Secretary assists the Chief Executive Officer in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps detailed
minutes of each meeting, which are available to all Directors for
inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for
their comment and approved as soon as practicable after the board
meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they
can ask for further information or retain independent professional
advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the
advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is responsible
for providing Directors with board papers and related materials and
ensuring that board procedures are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees, all
follow the applicable practices and procedures used in board meetings
for committee meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer on 27 November 2007. In view of the simple
structure of the Company, all significant decision making is carried
out by all executive Directors of the Company under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that the present
arrangement enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives effectively and
efficiently in response to the changing environment. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure in place to ensure effective oversight of management.
The Board will continually review the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether any changes are
necessary.
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ERELIHRSE

DIRECTORS’ TERMS OF APPOINTMENTS AND RE-
ELECTION

In accordance with Article 102(A) of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors, shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM.

Article 94 of the Company’s Articles provides that Directors appointed
either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting after their
appointment, and shall be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions
by Directors of the Company. All the Directors of the Board have
confirmed, following specific enquiries made by the Company, that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2010.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 28 and 29.
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ERELIHSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 December
2005 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending
to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and determination of
the remuneration of the executive Directors and members of senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall
be held at least once a year. At 30 June 2010, the Remuneration
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander and Mr. Law Tai Yan and one
executive Director, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard is the chairman of the
committee. For the year ended 30 June 2010, 3 meetings were held
by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance is as follows:

Mr. Chan Sing Fai (retired on 8 December 2009) PeR B S A (
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BIEA A
Mr. Law Tai Yan mER LA
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard BT RIS
(appointed on 15 December 2009) (RZ=EZE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 7 July 2008
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
It is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
nominations, appointment of Directors and Board succession. The
Nomination Committee selects candidates for directorship with
reference to the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics and integrity, and time commitments.
During the selection process, the Committee may consider referrals or
engage external recruitment professionals when necessary. Meetings
of the Nomination Committee are held when required. At 30 June
2010, the Nomination Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander, Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing and Mr. Law Tai Yan and one executive Director, Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the chairman of the Committee. For the
year ended 30 June 2010, 1 meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee to review the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee. The attendance is as follow:

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BB E L E
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BET ke
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BIEEE S
Mr. Law Tai Yan EHRESE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had an Audit Committee since 2004. It is
responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, internal
controls and making recommendations to the Board. At 30 June
2010, the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Law Tai Yan, Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi,
Alexander and Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing. Mr. Law Tai Yan is the
chairman of the committee.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, 4 meetings were held by the
Audit Committee to (a) review the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee (b) review the Group's internal control system and (c)
discuss auditing and financial reporting matters for the audited
financial statement for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the
unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 31 December
2009 before recommending them to the Board for approval. The
attendance is as follows:

Mr. Law Tai Yan BEBRLE
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander BEA S
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEEE S

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as follows:
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BEREHEZZTNF+T A=+ —ALEAEARNRE
%*Zﬁﬂ%#ﬁ%% CrREEEHERSME 2R HE
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Number of
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4/4
4/4
2/4

BB ETEA &
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Audit services: BRI
Audit of the annual financial statements ERFEUBHRE 370,000
Non-audit services: FEZRT
Review of disclosure requirement of EH PSRRI ERTE

interim financial statements 80,000
Very substantial acquisition of GMG GMG Media Group Limited®03E % & AU

Media Group Limited 50,000
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for introducing and continuously
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems of the
Group and reviews its adequacy and effectiveness. It is committed to
review and implement effective and sound internal controls systems
to safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Board has delegated to
the management with defined structure and limits of authority, to
conduct reviews on and maintenance of all material controls including
proper financial and accounting records, operational and compliance
and risk management functions as well as the implementation of the
internal control system to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The internal control systems will be
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the board in order to make it
practical and effective.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offers
comprehensive operational and financial performance information
to shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board. The Company regards the
AGM as an important event and all Directors, senior management and
external auditors make an effort to attend the AGM of the Company
to address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company
are given a minimum of 20 days’ notice of the date and venue of the
AGM of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s principle
to encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under the
Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars to shareholders
dispatched by the Company where applicable.
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RSM Nelson Wheeler

E(BB) STMEBM

Cemfled Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OUTDOOR MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Outdoor Media Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to
106, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 June 2010 and of the Group'’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 October 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

FReliRR

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations EREEK
Turnover R 6 23,698 37,681
Direct costs HERA (29,397) (20,458)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) EF (5,699) 17,223
Other income Heblg A 7 6,353 3,775
Impairment of goodwill EERE 18 = (22,923)
Administrative and other THREMEERS
operating expenses (22,245) (28,567)
Loss from operations EEEE (21,591) (30,492)
Finance costs hE R A 9 (544) (531)
Loss before tax MREiATE B (22,135) (31,023)
Income tax expense FriSHifsZ 10 (38) (2,319)
Loss for the year from continuing FRAFEEEER
operations Bia (22,173) (33,342)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued 45 ) 2 4% | FAR 4 7%
operations smAl (E18) 11 10,840 (16,614)
Loss for the year FREE 12 (11,333) (49,956)
Attributable to: PG
Owners of the Company ViN/NCTEZ N 14 (10,032) (46,936)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR A A (1,301) (3,020)
(11,333) (49,956)
Loss per share BRER
From continuing and REFRHBECEEB R
discontinued operations SIS
— basic —EK 16(a) HK(0.88) cent  HK(4.31) cents
el 7L
— diluted — % 16 N/A FiEA N/A g R
From continuing operations RERHECEET
— basic —HK 16(b)  HK(1.90) cents HK(2.99) cents
el Il
— diluted —#E 16 N/A FiEHA N/A 3 R
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

FER2EBAR

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HE-ZT—ZTF A=

THIEFE

2010 2009
—EB-FF —EThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
Loss for the year FAEE (11,333) (49,956)
Other comprehensive income after tax: BRIEEEMEEUA :
Exchange differences on translating REGINETSFTEEE 2 [ K =58
foreign operations 405 (176)
Exchange differences reclassified to HENBARREN S EEBRCER 8
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries - (2,612)
Other comprehensive income FARAHEHMSERA (HRBE)
for the year, net of tax 405 (2,788)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALLE
for the year (10,928) (52,744)
Attributable to: BN AL IR :
Owners of the Company PAN/NCTE =N (9.627) (49,724)
Non-controlling interests IR R (1,301) (3,020)
(10,928) (52,744)
HEFIMESEEERAR T -TFFR 31



Consolidated Statement of Financial Positic
ReEMBERAE

At 30June 2010 R=ZT—ZFA=+H

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEMEE 17 753 1,556
Club membership i 150 -
Goodwill [EES 18 5,245 5,245
Investments in associates REEENF 2 IE 20 = -
6,148 6,801
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 30 N H b e U 08 21 77,137 99,909
Bank and cash balances RITNIRE T 22 10,733 4,547
87,870 104,456
Current liabilities REBAS
Trade and other payables JEATE 5 3 B EL A FE ST ROE 23 14,303 32,037
Borrowings B’E 24 1,695 4,413
Current tax liabilities BIEARIIE B & 2,320 2,273
18,318 38,723
Net current assets REEEREE 69,552 65,733
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 75,700 72,534
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings =% 24 - 9,000
Convertible loans AR E 25 9,912 -
9,912 9,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 65,788 63,534
Capital and reserves R &
Share capital A& 7N 26 11,493 10,993
Reserves i 28 55,660 55,560
Equity attributable to owners of RABGER NEGER
the Company 67,153 66,553
Non-controlling interests eI RS (1,365) (3,019)
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 65,788 63,534
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 October 2010. EHREEFEN_E-TFTA-T-A#tZ-
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph Tang Lap Chin, Richard
2ER B AT
Director Director
2 EFE
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Statement of Financial Position
MR AE

At 30June 2010 RWZ=ZT—ZFA=+H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R KRG 17 358 16
Club membership SIS 150 -
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 19 - -
508 16
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TARRIE - e KA
other receivables FEU IR 21 505 366
Due from subsidiaries A NGRS 19 62,887 48,619
Bank and cash balances RITRIRG BT 2,135 214
65,527 49,199
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables E b pE T FIE 23 3,293 5,922
Borrowings BE 24 1,523 1,523
4,816 7,445
Net current assets REEEFE 60,711 41,754
Total assets less current liabilities HwEERABAR 61,219 41,770
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible loans AR E R 25 9,912 —
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 51,307 41,770
Capital and reserves BARFHE
Share capital f& A 26 11,493 10,993
Reserves EE 28 39,814 30,777
EQUITY ER 51,307 41,770
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 October 2010. EHEFEN T —TF+A-T-BA#Z-
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph Tang Lap Chin, Richard
ZER BB B
Director Director
EZE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equ

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAEAAEE

Share-based
payment Convertible Non-
reserve  Warrants loans controlling

Share Share DRt A reserve reserve  Exchange  Accumulated interests Total
capital  premium Elfy ARER TER reserve losses Total 2R equity
Bx  RHEE @R B ERRE  ENRE b 3 B AR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TEL THL T TERL AT TEL TAL

At 1July 2008 R=ZZ\FtA-A 10,493 805,946 21,38 - - 2,765 (736,438) 104,152 = 104,152
Total comprehensive income for the year EREARNER - - - - - (2,788) (46,936) (49,724 (3,020)  (52,744)
Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ BtUENB R AE1T 2/ 500 11,100 - - - - - 11,600 - 11,600

Issue of warrants BTREE - - - 525 - - - 525 - 525
Formation of non-wholly owned subsidiaries 732 EHBAF - - - - - _ - _

Changes in equity for the year ENEREY 500 11,100 - 525 - (2,788) (46936)  (37,599) (3019 (40,618)
At30 June 2009 and 1 July 2009 W_ZENERRZTAR

Z2ENELA-R 10,993 817,046 21,38 525 - 23) (783,374) 66,553 (3,019 63,534
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEANNEE - - - - - 405 (10,032) (9,627) (1301)  (10,928)
Issue of warrants BimalEE - - - 200 - - - 200 - 200
Share issued upon exercise of warrants TEAREEEETZRGD 500 9,625 - (125) - - - 10,000 - 10,000
Share options lapsed during the year ERBERESN - - (940) - - - 940 - - -
Equity component of convertible loans (note 25) [ & 12 54 (Mf25) - - - - 7 - - 7 - 27
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(a)) HEMBAR(HE29) - - - - - - - - 2,955 2,955
Changes in equity for the year ERERES 500 9,625 (940) 75 27 405 (9,092) 600 1,654 2,254
At 30 June 2010 R=Z-54§,A=1A 11,493 826,671 20,446 600 27 382 (792,466) 67,153 (1,365) 65,783
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeleiER

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (excluding gain/(loss)

REEBRERE

BRI R (T AR BE& L

2010
—z-25

HK$'000
FET

2009
—ZETNEF
HK$'000
FAT

on disposal of discontinued operations) massEre o Wk (E518)) (23,318) (48,645)
Adjustments for: FTFIEE FT{ERA%E
Finance costs BB 545 539
Interest income FMEMBA (1,345) (458)
Accruals written back BEEREA = (951)
Depreciation e 303 399
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BB L&E
and equipment 2R 18 1
Fair value loss on investment REMERNTE
property E1E = 18,169
Impairment of goodwill EERE - 22,923
Operating loss before working capital LBEESEHHZ
changes mEEBEE (23,797) (8,023)
Decrease in properties held for sale BEIEHEMER D - 5,278
Increase in trade and other receivables FEULE 5 TR N B JE U Sk T 1 (12,136) (13,437)
Increase in trade and other payables FERTE 530N E Ath FE A~ FRIBIE SN 21,218 7,109
Cash used in operations KEEBRERARS (14,715) (9,073)
Income taxes paid BT (27) (925)
Finance costs paid EATRE R AN (21) (539)
Net cash used in operating activities KEXBRACRSFR (14,763) (10,537)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETH2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE T B A7) = 1,356
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AT 29(a) (1,016) 2,627
Interest received B RS 796 458
Repayment of loan to an associate e — KB E AT 2 B 1,279 -
Purchase of club membership EEas (150) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8§ B ¥ - = & &4E (728) (9,975)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB K&E
plant and equipment PS5k 8 = 1
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEESES (FR) RS %E
investing activities 181 (5,533)
RESINEBEBARAT —T-TFEFR 35



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeleiER

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

METBHZRERE

2010

—z-25

HK$'000
FHET

2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
FAT

Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRIREE TS 3E 200 525
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PR RIAE 10,000 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible loans BT[N E RS 2R 9,800 -
Borrowings raised BERBEER 1,119 16,188
Repayment of borrowings BgEE (291) (3,172)
Net cash generated from BVEEBEL RS IFRE

financing activities 20,828 13,541
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HERERBRELERZ

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, Gl ) B8 6,246 (2,529)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — [EXRE &) 22 (60) (11)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FENzHERERHESEE

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,547 7,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRCZESRERESEE

AT END OF YEAR 10,733 4,547
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BeRERBESEE 22

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE BT 10,733 4,547
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR FRME

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong as a company
with limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The address of its registered office and principal
place of business is Unit 1803, 18th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company's shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2009. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years except as
stated below.

(a) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”
affects certain disclosures and presentation of the
financial statements. The balance sheet is renamed as
the statement of financial position and the cash flow
statement is renamed as the statement of cash flows.
All income and expenses arising from transactions with
non-owners are presented in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income, and the total carried
to the statement of changes in equity. The owner changes
in equity are presented in the statement of changes in
equity. HKAS 1 (Revised) also requires disclosures of the
reclassification adjustments and tax effects relating to
each component of other comprehensive income for the
year. HKAS 1 (Revised) has been applied retrospectively.

—RE R
RARBEEERMEHIRBBEMA L AE
RAR - HFMHEEREEEEMI 2tk
REBEFBEBI0RFNEEF 18181803
E o ARRIZBROREBHERSHFTBR AR
([BgE3ZFT 1) MR 70 -

RRARR/—HREERAR - EMBARZE
REBHNIIEHRRMEE9

BRI REBR] 2 BB BREER

RAFER  AEECRAAERRAERLE
EBERAN_ZTNFELA-RARBZES
FREER AT REERT A HREER
(IBEMBHREED ) - BEMBREELE
BEEMBHREEN([FEUBHREER])
FREEEU(EBGTER ) RBE - 7N
W EHA] RGBT BB B RE LS ES A
SEZGHBEARAFERBEFER2R
ZHEELEREE  METHIERI -

(a) HMEHRRZZR

BB ERE 15 BT [ Mg ®mE
ZERIFEVBREETHERER -
BEBBERIBRAUKINAEK RERE
TR A A cash flow statement]Ek
7 A& statement of cash flows] o E2JEHE
BANETRHEE Z AR KRR AI
mERMKEABAKRZR - MBHEEREER
HEHRINE - BEREAZERED
RESEHERZY) - BEGFLERIE 158
(FAERT) TR E R B N H A 2 E A
EMANBENDEAERLBBTE -
BERGTERE 1R (KB BEBYE
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR FRMME

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. E#AZHREBIT2EBHHBREEL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (cont'd) (])
(b) Consolidation (b) #HFEEEHE
HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial BERGFERIE 275 (BT [ 26 &8
Statements” contains the following requirements: STEAISIRER JB B THRE ¢

38

Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
The previous HKAS 27 requires excess losses to be
allocated to the owners of the Company, except
to the extent that the non-controlling shareholders
have a binding obligation and are able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received
shall be recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company. The previous HKAS
27 does not have specific requirements for such
transactions.

When the disposal of a subsidiary results in a loss
of control, the consideration of the sale and any
investment retained in that subsidiary are required
to be measured at their fair values. The previous
HKAS 27 does not have specific requirements for
such fair value measurements.

China Outdoor Media Group Limited Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR FRME

For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. HEMASHBREEBIT2EBMEREER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (cont'd)

(c) Operating segments
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. Previously, HKAS 14 "Segment Reporting”
required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geograpbhical), using a risks and rewards
approach, with the entity’s 'system of internal financial
reporting to key management personnel’ serving as the
starting point for the identification of such segments.
HKFRS 8 results in a redesignation of the Group’s
reportable segments, but has had no impact on the
reported results or financial position of the Group. HKFRS
8 has been applied retrospectively.

The segment accounting policies under HKFRS 8 are
stated in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

(%)

() REDH
BB RELNERIELE DR
E o EED AR A EBEKE D 2R
B EEREERZR - ZFENERSTIE
HRERLERREEN  UDEERE
DERFHERR < BE - BEGEERE
1451 D RE23R IR E - BRARARER
K EBRIMA D #B R RE) - A
ZEBIRIZEBASETARUBTE
W ERBAIZE DR 2 BEE - IR
WE BRI E R F 8 5| BAEF B
DAEBZ A 2HAE - EHAREED TR
SERESMBANL BZE - BEMBR
EEAFREPEM

BRI BMELRFEST D MBS RS
NP E R

AEEWERAEBEMEERERZHFTEE
M mELER - REBC M ERBIEHN
AIBRAMBHREEAZEZE  ERERENSE
A BB BRERNETHELEREANE
BIRRELEERTE

3. FEEHEE
ISR BRR DB EEEHBREED BB
RREHRAUAREEBEZSMERDAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

40

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and

estimates. It also requires the Directors to exercise their

judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to

these financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the financial

statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company'’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated exchange reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

China Outdoor Media Group Limited Annual Report 2010

3.

FESTTEER @)

REMABTBUBRELL HBRRE - B
ERAETIEBRRRMGAH  TEEEENE
SH B2 ET B - W SHBEE
MEBEAL BRI RUBBERAELAR

7 -

RREM S BRRN A TEGHAHERS
FIN o

(a)

=EakE
REMBHRREREARARENBRRE
ERNAZTHIEZWH®RE - WEBRRIE
RNEBAFEGIE 2 ER - AR
X -HERZMBREEBER - TR
EEHERHNE - B AKBERE AR
PR E B R B AR TS A R
BERZRNFERTE -

MEAR AR RSB EARE A4
ARG AR - WAEEHIRR L2 REFE
IS PN:

HE—RNBARMERREEREZE
@) HERBEAFENMRENZHBA
Bl Z (AR E DR () A 2 B S L
BRAREEFENABZIE AR ZEMA
BT RE R R AHE L R 2 R
EH o

SEARRZENRS - HEHEARER
M T AL - RIFARHE B BB
HREELHRE  SRARERBETT
PAS3H - B ARIZ SRR EFHOE
TR DARELR BEAERB PTER A 2 R —
B o



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(a)

Consolidation (cont'd)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

3.

42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b)

(o)

Business combination and goodwiill (cont'd)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(y) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policies of an
entity but is not control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.
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3.

44

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(o)

Associates (cont'd)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of
that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
associate and any related accumulated exchange reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3.
(d) Foreign currency translation (cont'd) (d)

FESHBER @)
IR ()
(i) HEEEZKRE

(iii) Translation on consolidation

46

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses

WAREETHRARR IR
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BRI BRAT TR RE R
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are translated at the exchange rates on the e K
transaction dates); and
- Allresulting exchange differences are - FTEHUME4AZERERE

recognised in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Computer equipment 9% —20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 9% —20%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Site equipment 30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(f)

(9)

(h)

48

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the income statement, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

0}

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

()

(k)

0}

(m)

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the contracts,

as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative

amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the loans
into equity of the Group, is included in equity as capital
reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible loans based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Outdoor media advertising and media related service
income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Income from sales of properties is recognised when title
has passed.

Rental income is recognised on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain Directors, employees and consultants. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NA=ZTRLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3.

NA=TRLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(v)

Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3.
(w) Related parties

FESHBER @)
(w) BEAL

A party is related to the Group if: THATHR BB EE B RRE

56

(x)

(i)

directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or has joint control over

(i)

ZATEESHE R EZIA PN
HBRZIESAEE - RAREEE
R EAREE SRR 2 =6 B
RAEEHBAIHAEETHREXN
FEBNZERE  KEAEEREEH

the Group; [ 2 A
(i) the party is an associate; (i RALABBAL:
(iii)  the party is a joint venture; (i) BALAREERA:

(iv)

(vii)

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Operating segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal

reports about components of the Group that are regularly

reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order

to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its

performance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(y)

Impairment of assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

3.
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3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$5,245,000 after
an impairment loss of approximately HK$22,923,000
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2009. Details
of the impairment loss calculation are provided in note 18
to financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (cont'd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

(d)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi ("RMB") which are the functional currencies of
the principal operating entities of the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances and
trade and other receivables included in the statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial
assets.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(b)

()

Credit risk (cont’d)
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the Directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is
as follows:

At 30 June 2010
Trade and other payables

Borrowings BE
Convertible loans AR E R
At 30 June 2009 RZBEENE

Trade and other payables
Borrowings BE

5. BX¥ERER@®

(b)

(0

R-ZZE—ZFXA=1+H
JEHE SRR B A 3E

~NB=+H
FERTE 23 &% EAth FE T RE

FEIFIMEREEB AR AT

FERR (&)
AEEYESESTEERR -

FEBERERTHRRABRAEABEFE
B BEPEITHE -

RITEReHEFZEERARER - RAZ
RZHFHRHBRERFREETER
BRERERZRT -

AEEZ FERRIEFENEKE SRR
Hitb WA - EETE B S ERNEHE
Bz WE SRR - WHERD R KEES
RABRBEEE - UREREEERR -
Fit - ERERANEEZEERBRARR

Ao

RBESERE

AEBZBRRASEMERBAIRAR 2R
PESFFR - EMBARNEEFI TR
SREABNEEMEEHRNRSDESH

AEESRBEZIMANET

Less than Between
1 and 2 years
—EmEF
HK$'000
Tt

1 year
PR—EF

HK$'000
TR

7,431 -
1,695 -
392 10,192
23,972 492
4,413 11,208
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
(d) Interest rate risk
The Group’s convertible loans bear interest at fixed
interest rate and therefore is subject to fair value interest
rate risks.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 June 2010

TRMEE

Financial assets:
Loans and receivables (including cash and

R REE (&)
(d) F=EK

ERREWHEA(ERE

AEE 2z AR EFIREE N XA -
m/Am S A FEM XL o

]

B EXFTRES) - ANEEY EE A B AM
BEERBE  FEENRARKEEY
EEZRGENETIS N KB EER -

R-BE-FEFXNA=Z+HEMIAZSE

2009

—ZETNEF
HK$'000

—z-25

HK$’000
T FI

cash equivalents) RERERBFSER) 63,754 88,582
Financial liabilities: sHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BHIERATTEZ 2RmAalsE 19,038 37,877
(f) Fair values fl 2F¥E

Except as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements,
the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective
fair values.
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6. TURNOVER 6. EXH
The Group's turnover which represents sales of properties, AEB 7 EEBELEME - WEHESWANR
property rental income and revenue from provision of outdoor MR iR P IR RS BE & K I R MR R AR S Uk 2
media advertising and media related services are as follows: N
2010
—E—FF
HK$'000
FTHET
Sales of properties HEME - 6,993
Property rental income MERSHA = 2,191
Outdoor media advertising and FOMEREEE R IR EE
media related service income MRS A 25,101 38,344
25,101 47,528
Representing: D=
Continuing operations FIEL R ETS 23,698 37,681
Discontinued operations (note 711) BRI EEB (i 11) 1,403 9,847
25,101 47,528
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMKA
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHTT
Accruals written back et £ R - 951
Bad debt recovered U Bl AR 4,946 2,000
Bank interest income RITFIBUA 2 19
Guaranteed income related BREAREYHEZIRE
to investment property WA - 2,271
Other interest income H A2 HA 1,343 439
Referral income EEVIN N = 500
Sundry income HMETHIA 65 33
6,356 6,213
Representing: ®E :
Continuing operations SIBICE TS 6,353 3,775
Discontinued operations (note 11) BRI EEB(HE11) 3 2,438
6,356 6,213
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64

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has four reportable segments as follows:

Media and — Provision of media and advertising
advertising — PRC services in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC")

Provision of television advertising

Television advertising
— Hong Kong services in Hong Kong
(discontinued operation)
Media related Provision of media related services

Property investment

Investments in properties for
leasing and trading (discontinued
operation)

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 3 to the financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income,
finance costs, impairment of goodwill, income tax expense
and corporate administrative and other operating expenses.
Segment assets do not include club membership, goodwill and
other assets for general administrative use. Segment liabilities
do not include current tax liabilities, convertible loans and other
liabilities for general administrative use.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

8. 7oHER@

FHRTEHRIPEFNNEE  EEREEZE

¥

Media and Total  Television Total
advertising - Media  continuing advertising - Property discontinued
PRC related  operations HongKong investment  operations Total
RERES RERE BERES BRILEE
—HE RERE By et ) NERE E i CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TAT TR TET TR
Year ended 30 June 2010 HE-2-2%
AAZTHLEE
Revenue from external customers  RESMREF 2 I 23,633 65 23,698 1,403 - 1,403 25,101
Segment loss PEEE (7,497) (696) (8,193) (1,185) - (1,185) (9,378)
Interest revenue FIEWA 2 - 2 - - - 2
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 14 - 14 100 - 100 114
Income tax credit FrigHES (28) - (28) - - - (28)
Additions to segment REDDFTE
non-current assets BE - - - 135 - 135 135
As at 30 June 2010 RZZ-BFXA=T1H
Segment assets NEEE 35,081 - 35,081 - - - 35,081
Segment liabilities KEEE 8,666 - 8,666 - - - 8,666
HEFIMESEEERAR T -TFFR 65



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR FRMME

For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

8.

66

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities: (cont'd)

Year ended 30 June 2009

Revenue from external customers

Segment profit/(loss)

Interest revenue

Depreciation and amortisation

Income tax expense/(credit)

Other material non-cash items:
Impairment of goodwill

Fair value loss on investment
property

Additions to segment
non-current assets

As at 30 June 2009

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

HE-ZENE
AAZTRLEE

REHFEP MG
AEEH/ (BR)
MEMA
REREH
gk /(E2)

AMEAFRLER
AERE

RAMEZAYE
BB

REDEIERD

R=ZBAERAZTA

5
o
s
ok

5
Dl
o
piny
S

Media and
advertising -

HK$'000

B

37,681

14,860

2,319

56,258

23471

Media
related

el
HK$'000
:FE:E

(5,135)

22,923

8. 7oHERm@m

FHRTEHRIPEFAEE  BEEREEZE
B (8

Total
continuing
operations

A7

37,681

9,725

2,319

22,923

56,258

23471

Television
advertising -
Hong Kong
7= )%%:

7B

HK$'000
BT

663

(3,757)

228

1,402

1,239

840

Property
investment

MERE
HK$'000

I

9,184
(16,294)

124

(2,989)

18,169

8,502

53

62

Total
discontinued
operations

& X

X i
HK$'00
TR

9,847
(20,051)
124
237

(2,98%)

18,169

9,904

1,292

902

Total

cH
HK$'000

B ot
=YY

47,528

(10,326)

130

246

(669)

22,923

18,169

9,921

57,550

24,373
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities:

P EER (@)

TE/SBYE - BFNNEE EEREEZ

¥R -

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Revenue Weas
Total revenue of reportable segments A 2o E 2 Bl 25,101 47,528
Elimination of discontinued operations YD RIS (1,403) (9,847)
Consolidated revenue e 23,698 37,681
Profit or loss AR EE
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 7] 2§58 > & Fl| sk &5 18 42 58 (9,378) (10,326)
Other profit or loss H s Fsk &8 (13,978) (14,727)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBATIWZE(B8) 12,023 (1,980)
Impairment loss on goodwill EENERE - (22,923)
Elimination of discontinued operations HEE AR B TS (10,840) 16,614
Consolidated loss for the year FANRBFECEES 2

from continuing operations ZEEEER (22,173) (33,342)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AEmHN I BEE 35,081 57,550
Goodwill fEES 5,245 5,245
Club membership EHEHE 150 -
Other assets Hib&E 53,542 48,462
Consolidated total assets LEREE 94,018 111,257
Liabilities =K
Total liabilities of reportable segments AI2%H BB E 8,666 24,373
Current tax liabilities ENEAf B B (& 2,320 2,273
Convertible loans AR E 9,912 -
Other liabilities HiBE 7,332 21,077
Consolidated total liabilities LAEas 28,230 47,723
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 8. oWER M@
Geographical information: WEEE :
Revenue Non-current assets
& FREEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%F —FTTNEF —F-BF TTIhF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T3 FHExT T3
Hong Kong E5 1,468 9,847 6,119 5,583
PRC except Hong Kong R (EBRIN 23,633 37,681 29 43
Discontinued operations DR IF AR TS (1,403) (9,847) - 1,175
Consolidated total RE KB 23,698 37,681 6,148 6,801

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on REFHEEREE - WS IR E B A
the locations of the customers. ¥ o
Revenue from major customers: RETERS S
2010 2009
—E—FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Media and advertising — PRC segment HREEL — ) Ef
Customer a BFEH 5,971 -
Customer b BEL 3,417 -
Customer ¢ ZFEA 2,890 -
Customer d Z2ET - 6,793
Customer e BEK - 6,268
Property investment segment MEREDH
(discontinued operation) (BRI EEE)
Customer f 250 - 6,993
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 #HEZZ—ZF A=1HILFE

10.

FINANCE COSTS

9. RWEMRA

2010 2009
—g-®F  -ITNH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Interest on convertible loans AR ERFE 139 -
Interest on other loans and advances HERREHRFE 386 520

Interest and charges on bank loans and RITERRBFFERE R
advances 20 19
545 539

Representing: P= I

Continuing operations B ETS 544 531
Discontinued operations (note 711) BRI EEB(711) 1 8
545 539

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

10. FREHMA%(E%)

BIEATRIR — BB SR

2010

—g-%f

HK$'000
FET

2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
T T

Provision for the year FREA 66 -
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax  BIEAF{IE — AR BIE TSR
and land appreciation tax THIEET
Provision for the year F R 46 3,873
Overprovision in prior years wTFE R (74) -
(28) 3,873
Deferred tax IRIEFLTE = (4,542)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisfis(H k) 38 (669)
Representing: xE -
Continuing operations BB 38 2,319
Discontinued operations (note 711) BRI EEB (a2 11) - (2,988)
38 (669)
FEFIMEREBARART —TTFEFR 69
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (cont'd)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 30 June
2010. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the year ended 30 June 2009 as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that year.

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at a statutory rate of
25% of the taxable income from operations of the Company’s
subsidiaries carried on in the PRC as determined in accordance
with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC
during the year.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied, in accordance with the land
appreciation tax law of the PRC, on the properties held by the
Group for sale in the PRC and is charged at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciated amount.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate is as follows:

10. Fii5®ipIx (&%) @)
EBFEHOREBE_S—TEA=+AIt
R RS FIAR R 16.5% B4 » @
WAEBRBE-_EEAFAA=+ALEE
I 4R BB AT RE R % A - M
FREBEEBFER o

TEGEMRERIYRKEARRNERBRT
BT 75 2 FERTUA (RIBF R B AR RE AT
BERBERERE ) OEERE25%:TE o

AR A R AR R P B T i E R B A
EEBEUEERBELE 2 WELK - IR
EEANT30%E60% 2 REFRAH -

FrSMiFIs (%) BB B AT BT ATEF
EBURBEMSEBZARNT

2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Loss before tax BRI A ES 1B
Continuing operations FHEREED (22,135) (31,023)
Discontinued operations (note 711) BRI (a7 11) (1,183) (17,622)
(23,318) (48,645)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate RAM PTG B 2 16.5% 0
of 16.5% (3.847) (8,026)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBBAZ MG E (1) (1,513)
Tax effect of expenses that are TAIES 2 g2
not deductible 9214 6,386
Tax effect of temporary differences AERGHERE MG E
not recognised (15) (122)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses R BERERAREEEZ
not previously recognised b= (5) (81)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERREERB MG E 3,282 3,403
Overprovision in prior years B S R (74) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AT TR & 2 272 (216) (716)
Income tax expense/(credit) FTSHiMsx, (k) 38 (669)
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 BZEZE_T—TF

10.

11.

NA=TRLEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$135,634,000 (2009:
approximately HK$123,865,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$7,583,000 (2009:
HK$NIl) that will expire in 2015. Other tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised is approximately HK$1,794,000 (2009:
HK$9,266,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised
in respect of these differences because the Group isin a
position to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a) Property investment segment
Pursuant to an agreement dated 26 November 2008
entered into between Welchem Development Limited
("Welchem"), a subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party, Welchem disposed of 100%
interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, First Union Limited
("First Union™).

First Union held 100% interest in a sino-foreign equity
joint venture, bR EERBMABRATF ("
a1"), established in the PRC. 4t 53¢ &1l was engaged in
the property investment during the year ended 30 June
2009. The disposal was completed on 3 April 2009 and
the Group discontinued its property investment business.

10. FIERiEX(ER)@®

1.

TEPIMKBEEERA

RgEHE&EER 'ﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁ
E518 47 135,634,000 B (Z T NF &
123,865,000 7T ) + Al A EE SH R AE A ©
B R B i B SRR B LA TR T - AR B R IR AT
MIBEE - AERRBEBEEEIN_Z—

FfEm2E5187,583,0008 TL(ZEThE : T
FETT) o H I8 TR P] AR R A E o

REHAAEER - BZEWRERRTERIE
BEZMBRARIZADEBTN B G EH
HREEXY1,794,0008 7T (ZEENF ¢ 9,266,000
BIT) c AR AEBBERESIZEMB AR Z
MREBECE - B ABEREIE TSR0 RS RE
B - MO RS E R RIRE R IEAE -

BRIEEEER

(a) YMERESH
REBEARARMNBERATELSERERAAF
([ E—EBILIE=TTN_ZFT/\F
t—AZTNBAEIL 2 - ERhE
2EMBRARZEHERAR([EH )2

N9

M o

SRS AR B 2 FIMEEREIL R
KAREERERERAR (ML)
E#ER - ERHARBE_SZNER
A=ZTHLFEEENRRERS - hE
ERZZTAFMA=ATRK  MAEE
ERIEEMEREERR

—E-TFFR 71
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1.

72

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (cont'd)

(b)

Television advertising - Hong Kong segment
Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 August 2009 entered
into between a subsidiary of the Company, China New
Media Company Limited (“China New Media”) and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of a related company, China
New Media disposed of 4% interests in a subsidiary,
iKanTV Limited (“iKanTV") at a consideration of
approximately HK$9,200,000. The Group recorded a gain
of approximately HK$12,023,000.

iKanTV held 51% interest in HD Production Limited (“HD
Production”), established in Hong Kong. iKanTV and HD
Production were engaged in the provision of television
advertising services in Hong Kong during the year. The
disposal was completed on 30 September 2009 and the
Group discontinued its operation of provision of television
advertising services in Hong Kong.

The profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued operations is

analysed as follows:

1.

ERIEEEEE)

(b)

BRESE BB
REBEADRMEARHENEEARAR
([HE#HRE ) BEERARZ2ENE
RAIRZBBNFNAZ T+ LB
2 PEFRREEHNBARES
BERERAF(EFER D4%iEs - K
B#99,200,000/8 7T * AN & EESWRD
12,023,000/ 7T °

BEERRAERBBKILZ 28 EREHIE
BERAR([=/BEEGIE])S1%E -
EEERLSREEIIERFAERER
HEREERS - HEER_FZTNFN
A=1B%K  FEEDKIEEREBR
HEREERG X -

FARBERILCEER G, (BER) 2D

M -

2010 2009

—E-2F —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Loss of discontinued operations B e (1,183) (14,634)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of discontinued HEDRIEEEEL 2 I/ (E18)

operations (note 29(a)) (K13£29(a)) 12,023 (1,980)

10,840 (16,614)
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1.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (cont'd)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period from 1
July 2009 to 30 September 2009, which have been included in
the consolidated profit or loss, are as follows:

1.

BRI ER @)
ATABRKRIEE LB -_ETNFLA—R
E-TTAFEAASTEYREIALGAER
TR

Period from

1 July 2009 to Year ended

30 September 30 June

2009 2009

H=ZFhF HE

tHA—BZE —TTNF

—EEBNF ~A=1+H

hA=+HHE™E IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Turnover i 1,403 9,847
Direct costs HEKA (822) (6,152)
Gross profit EF 581 3,695
Other income =N 3 2,438
Fair value loss on investment property WEMERNTERRE = (18,169)
Administrative and other operating expenses 77 & E fib & &5 2 (1,766) (5,578)
Loss from operations AT (1,182) (17,614)
Finance costs BB (1) (8)
Loss before tax BRERIEE (1,183) (17,622)
Income tax credit Ffsfiif & = 2,988
Loss for the period/year B FRER (1,183) (14,634)

During the year, the disposed subsidiaries received
approximately HK$1,397,000 (2009: paid HK$6,023,000)
in respect of operating activities and paid approximately
HK$135,000 (2009: HK$2,301,000) in respect of investing
activities. During the year ended 30 June 2009, the disposed
subsidiaries received approximately HK$2,706,000 in respect of
financing activities.

No tax charge or credit arose on gain/(loss) on disposal of the
discontinued operations.

FEIFIMEREEB AR AT

FRN - HEMBAREREEEDH K
B 491,397,000 80 ( ZFEZENF : £ T
6,023,000/ 7C) + &R EEBZ1749135,000
BIL(ZZZNF 1 2,301,00087T) - HE-Z
ZRERNA=ZTHILEFE  HEWBARHH
E)EB)UNENAY2,706,0005 7T ©

HEBRIEREEB 2 WE (BR) L EESE
BRI R ©
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FREE
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging the REFBZENEEEHR TY&IE :
following:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
RREKEEY BRIREER &t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

—g-%F “TTAF —F-BF “ITNF SB-BF “TINA
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT T FER  TET TR TER

Depreciation e 203 163 100 236 303 399
Staff costs including Directors’ BT - £1F
emoluments Exien
Salaries, bonus and allowances &4 « FEAT R £E; 4,031 5,591 679 2,132 4,710 7,723
Retirement benefit scheme RINERMETE
contributions 3 150 156 28 61 178 217
4,181 5,747 707 2,193 4,888 7,940
Auditor's remuneration ZER S 370 335 - 45 370 380
Cost of properties sold HEMEKAR - - - 5,278 - 5,278
Fair value loss on investment RENENTAE
property B - - - 18,169 - 18,169
Operating lease charges REHERS
- Land and buildings — T REF 2,248 2,372 77 354 2,325 2,726
- Office equipment YN 16 - = - 16 -
- Billboards —PINEEIR 29,028 19,587 - - 29,028 19,587
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BEN
plant and equipment RiEZ B 18 1 - - 18 1
Bad debts written off HssiEE - 5,125 - - - 5,125
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of each Director were as follows:

EEkESHM
BEEZMEWT ¢

13.

Retirement benefit

Fees Salaries and allowances  scheme contributions Total
ne FeREE RINERSTEIHR &t
2010 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF NE “B-BF —TTNF ZB-BF —TTNE ZB-BE _TTNHE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TExT FHT TET THT TET THT TExT TR
Executive Directors YITES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph  ZIBi& %4 = 540 = - = 3 = 543
Mr. Lu Liang ) yidaa - - 360 360 - - 360 360
Mr. Ng Yan BMEE 24 24 = - = - 24 24
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard 557 Aij 5 4 (#2(a))
(note (a)) 1 - = - - - 1 _
Mr. Chan Sing Fai (note (b))~ BRAGEE £ (71 (b) 79 270 = - 4 1 83 281
104 834 360 360 4 14 468 1,208
Independent BUFHTES
Non-executive
Directors
Mr. Cheng Kwong Choi, BETLE
Alexander 36 36 - - - - 36 36
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEERAE 36 36 = - = - 36 36
Mr. Law Tai Yan BEREE 36 36 - - - - 36 36
108 108 - - - - 108 108
212 942 360 360 4 14 576 1,316
Notes: W
(a) Appointed on 15 December 2009 (a) RZZEZNF+-_A+RAEZE

(b)

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2009: Nil).

Retired on 9 December 2009

(b)

FEIFIMRREEB AR AT

RZZEZAF+ZANBRE

—T-TEER

FBLE 0] A R 5 5 3R ok [R) B 3R ) M
E2TH(ZETNE  E) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2010 HEZZ—ZFA=1HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 1 (2009: 1) Director whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
4 (2009: 4) individuals are set out below:

13.

EEREEFHFH @

ER AEBLLRSFMESRIE—R(=F
ThE: —R)EE EMLHBEER X275
ZHOWMPRER - EHMNE(ZBEAE : )
BSHHES 2 BERIINT :

2010 2009

—e-v5  —TEINA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH5 Fi

Basic salaries and allowances HARFH® NMoERL 1,864 2,250
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R Hig It 14t 2k 42 48
1,906 2,298

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T

BN BIATEHE

Number of individuals
AE

2010
—E-EF

2009
—TT N

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
included a loss of approximately HK$690,000 (2009:
HK$61,926,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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15.

16.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$10,032,000 (2009: HK$46,936,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,138,381,000
(2009: 1,087,504,000) in issue during the year.

(b) From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the loss for the year from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$21,648,000 (2009: HK$32,502,000 (restated)) and
the denominator used is the same as that detailed above
for basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

(c) Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued
operations
Basic earnings per share from the discontinued
operations for the year ended 30 June 2010 is HK1.02
cents (2009: loss per share of HK1.32 cents (restated)),
based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$11,616,000 (2009: loss of
HK$14,434,000 (restated)) and the denominator used is
the same as that detailed above for basic loss per share
from continuing and discontinued operations.

There were no potential ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 30 June 2009 and 2010. No diluted (loss)/earnings
per share were disclosed.

15. ®RE
EETEENBEEZ_Z—ZFA=+HL
FEZAARE(ZETNG &) -

16. BR(ER) EF
(a) REFACLERRCRILEEER
FRELEIE
RNREE AEEBREABREIIZFER
RARFEAB AEEE1E4110,032,0008 7T
(ZZTNF : 46,936,000/ 7T ) M AREZ
B R 1T RAR N T 19 $£1,138,381,000
B =ZZTH4F :1,087,504,0000%) 5+ &

(b) REFELEEK

GREXEE
RNRHEANEERAFECEER 2T
BEE AR BB TYIRE NAN R FIHEA ARG 2R
B MBS TS 2 B5184921,648,00078 7T
(ZZTAE 32,502,000/ 7T (E51))) &
B E T E R B S B R BRI
BEBZBRENSIBHARZ D TE -

(0 REBRLKEXBZSREN (HH)

HEZZ—ZFRA=-THLEFE ' K
EE%\%M«%%WZ:H BEREF1.02
BN ZETAF - FREE1.3281(E
7)) - THRFERNARRRBAEGERED
BRI EER 2% M 4911,616,000% 7T
(ZETNF : [51814,434,0008 T (&
7)) R B EXCEHRETE —#%%%%ﬁk&a
BRIF RS 2 GIREAEBAERL 2 5
ETE -

HREBE_ZENFR-_T-TFA=1H

=—
I FETR|OETAE TR - Ft I BIRE
FhEE(ER), AT -

hEFIIEEEERREAT —T-TFFRH 77
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

78

Construction
in progress

ERIR
HK$'000

b
B7L

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
B
$ER
BAERME
HK$'000
Fitn

17. Y% BERRE

Leasehold
[

i)
HK$'000
AL

Group
A5H

Motor
vehicles

Computer
equipment

RE  BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T

Site
equipment

Bl
HK$'000
T

Total

)
HK$'000
Titn

Cost RAE
At 1 July 2008 RZZEN\E+A—-H 13,680 233 - 475 78 - 14,466
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR - 36 - - - - 36
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - (78) - - - - (78)
Additions AE 8,502 214 156 - 191 912 9,975
Disposals pe - - - - @) - @)
Transfer to investment property ~ EBAZREYE (22,144) - - - - - (22,144)
Exchange differences EXES (38) - - - - - (38)
At30June 2009 and 1 July 2009 R-ZTZAEAR=TER

“ETNFLA-A - 405 156 475 267 912 2,215
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(a) £ E M B AR (H:7294)) - (198) (156) - an) (912) (1,537)
Additions "E - 172 406 - 150 - 728
Disposals LE - (150) - - ) - (154)
Exchange differences B 5 - 1 - _ _ _ 1
At 30 June 2010 WS4 A=1H - 230 406 475 142 - 1,253
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE

and impairment

At 1 July 2008 R=ZE\EtA-H - 126 - 119 31 - 276
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBAR - (16) - - - - (16)
Charge for the year AEELH - 65 26 19 4N 148 399
At30June 2009 and 1July 2009 M-ZEAFSA=TEL

“FENELA-A - 175 26 238 72 148 659
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(3)) &M B Rl(H1i2296) - (41) (34) - (35) (216) (326)
Disposals e - (132) - - ) - (136)
Charge for the year KEETH - 43 34 119 39 68 303
At 30 June 2010 RZZ-Z5~A=1H - 45 26 357 72 - 500
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2010 R-Z-ZERA=TH - 185 380 118 70 - 753
At 30 June 2009 RZEENERA=TH - 230 130 237 195 764 1,556
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd) 17. 9% - BERRE @R

Furniture,
fixtures and
office

equipment
B HER
HK$'000
THT

Leasehold
improvements
HE

HK$'000

BT

Company
VN

Computer
equipment

ElRE
HK$'000

THEL

Total

At
HK$'000
87

Cost BAME
At 1 July 2008 RZTZEN\F+A—H - - 28 28
Additions NE - - 6 6
At 30 June 2009 and RZZFZAFAA=THE

1 July 2009 “TENFELA-H - - 34 34
Additions NE 138 228 21 387
At 30 June 2010 R-ZZ-TFA=+H 138 228 55 421
Accumulated depreciation REHNE
At 1 July 2008 R-ZZ\F+A—B - - 12 12
Charge for the year AEEZH - - 6 6
At 30 June 2009 and RZZEZNERA=ZTHK

1 July 2009 TS+ A-A - - 18 18
Charge for the year REETH 14 23 8 45
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZTF-A=1H 14 23 26 63
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZTF A=1H 124 205 29 358
At 30 June 2009 RZZTNFAA=1H - - 16 16
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FRAZTRLFE

GOODWILL

18. HE

Group
REE

HK$'000
FAT

Cost RAME
At 1 July 2008 RZZZNF+A—H 22,923
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT A 7 5,245
At 30 June 2009, 1 July 2009 and 30 June 2010 RZETAFRA=TRA - ZTFNFLA—H
R—Z-FFRA=1H 28,168

Accumulated impairment loss ZitREEE
Impairment loss recognised in the year ended HEZZTNFAAA=THILEFERRBE

30 June 2009 and balance at 30 June 2009, BEMRZZENFAA=+H  ZTTNF

1 July 2009 and 30 June 2010 tA—ARZTE-ZFA=+tHZE 22,923
Carrying amount IRMEE
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZFFA=+H 5,245
At 30 June 2009 RZEZNFARA=1H 5,245
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18. GOODWILL (cont'd)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs"”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. Before
recognition of impairment loss, the carrying amount of goodwill
had been allocated as follows:

hERREERS

Media and advertising services in PRC:
L&L Partners’ Limited (“L&L Partners'")

L&L Partners’ Limited

18. WE @)
E¥BAHBAZEENRKEBE S EEERE
BEBANT RS RSEABEN([REESE
Bz]) - RERREEBERN EOoREHEZR
HERAT :

2009
—ZETNEF
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FHET

(note (a)) (TL&L Partners' |) (Hit(a)) 5,245 5,245

Media related services: IRESFERAARTS -
Fadara Limited (“Fadara”) (note (b)) Fadara Limited([ Fadaral) (#7:£(b)) 22,923 22,923
28,168 28,168

Notes:

(@  The recoverable amount of the media and advertising services in
PRC CGU is determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the
discount rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-
tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the media and advertising service in
PRC CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the business of the
media and advertising services in PRC CGU operates. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the Directors for the next three years
with the residual period using the growth rate of 5.54% (2009: 7.5%).
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s activities of provision of media and advertising
services in PRC is 21.25% (2009: 20.01%).

(b) During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group revised its cash
flow forecasts of the media related services CGU. No cash flow was
expected to be derived from the CGU. Due to changes in condition,
full impairment of approximately HK$22,923,000 has been made in
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009.

(@ TFTHRARBESRERSELSMLZAKESET)
REEEREEEE - A EEREERAZE
BERREPAUBRE  WREAFHEFN L RS
ERAR - ARBUATRKRE R TISEERER
EEZFEARTREENESRERCELE
7 2 55 BB SR AR BRI L R AT B R R -
FARPERBERERBRECELFMULLEED
e R TFIGEBERE QAR - HEEF X
N A EE BT EPI R TR TS B R AR -

AEERBHRIPEESIAENRR=FUKE
HIGRRemETEA - A T HAMRIRA5.54% (=
TTNGF 1 7.5%)2ERE - AR AREEE
FmSs FHRMERR - BUMBEAELEFE
REESREESHHSAEAAZLEE21.25%
(ZZZTAE :20.01%) °

(b) BHE_ZEZAENA=THLEE KXEEEE
FIEERERSESESEN RS REEN -
BHRZRCELENITSELRERE - AN
NEE  BEREBE_ZTAFAA=THLEFE
2 B RS IRE A 4922,923,00078 7T 2 2 HURME ©
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19.

82

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. AMBARZRE
Company
¥ /N
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETRRAD » LA 1 1
Less: impairment losses R OR(ERE (1) (1M
Due from subsidiaries FEUR B A BRI 227,832 223,193
Accumulated impairment losses RItREEE
At beginning of year F1 174,574 164,002
Allowance for the year IR [ B 885 33,954
Amounts write-back for the year REZHRB & (10,514) (23,382)
At end of year FR 164,945 174,574
Net carrying amount BREFE 62,887 48,619
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free B AT ZREAEIER oo NERETE
and have no fixed terms of repayment. R -
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2010 are as follows:

Konmate Investments Limited

BEXREBRARF

Konwide Development Limited
EEERERAR

Noble City (Asia) Limited
BE(TM)BRATF

Welchem
Ey

China New Media
BT RS

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
AR A it B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Issued and

paid up capital
ERTRESRA

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
QREREEIRT

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
MBREEIETLZ

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
rBREEETL

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
QREREEIRT

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
MEREEIRTLZ

19.

RMBLARZ®RE @)
R-E—ZFXA=+HEZMBRRFBOT :

Percentage of
ownership/interest/
voting power/

profit sharing
FER B/ KRR/

ERaHE

Direct Indirect
Ef# 3

100% -

100% -

100% -

- 100%

100%

FEIFIMERERBARAR

Principal activities

TERRK

Investment holding
RERK

Inactive

LEXH

Investment holding and
provision of management
services

REBRRITHER RS

Inactive

BEEK

Investment holding
REEK
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TEAASTELFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

China New Media (HK)
Company Limited
B (R ) ERAR

Fadara

L&L Partners’

iMediagate Limited

Shanghai Win Advertising Media
Co., Ltd.
LERHESBRERRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
R AR i B

Hong Kong
0

British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

RBRAES
([EBRLES])

BVI
RBRIES

BVI
RBRIES

PRC
h

19.

Issued and

paid up capital
BRTREMRA

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
100 BREEETLZ

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
100/ BREEIETL

29,868 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
29,868 GREEIETZ

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
100 EBRAEEIFTL

Registered capital of
RMB5,000,000

FMRAARE
5,000,0007C
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RHBARZ®RE @)

Percentage of
ownership/interest/
voting power/

profit sharing

Lot Ve $VE T Ve
[

Direct Indirect

=t

- 51%

- 100%

- 100%

- 51%

- 100%

Principal activities

EXE

Provision of media
management and
consultancy services

RAEREE LB RS

Inactive

LEXY

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive

LTEE

Provision of outdoor media
advertising services

REPIMIEESRE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. RBEQRIZRE

Group

EE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHTT

Unlisted investments: FELMIRE

Share of net assets FEGE TR - -
Details of the Group's associates at 30 June 2010 are as follows: AEBR-ZZE-ZEFNA=THZBERRF

BT

Percentage of

Place of ownership/interest/
incorporation/ voting power/
registration profit sharing
and operation Issued and BER/
SR paid up capital i/ Principal activities
TR R AR B ERTREMRE [ S TEER
Direct Indirect
H#E 3
iKanTV BVI 100 ordinary shares of 47% - Investment holding and provision
BEEL HEELEE US$1 each of media advertising and media
100l BREEIETLZ related services
ERR REZRRIEHEERS
LR RERG
HD Production Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 24%  Inactive
=B R iE I EE HK$1 each BEER
100 ERmEIETZ
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd) 20. REE AR ZIRE @)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's AT AREEBE NG ZHEERBTE :
associates is set out below:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THExT T

At 30 June WANA=+H
Total assets BEE 1,608 —
Total liabilities BEE (11,107) -
Net liabilities BEFE (9,499) -

Group's share of associates’ net liabilities ~ A&E@EfE(GHE AT B EF5E = -

Year ended 30 June HENAZTHLESE

Total revenue Bl 1,358 -
Total loss for the year FREER (3,721) -
Group's share of associates’ loss REBFARGE S A FIER

for the year - -

The Group has not recognised loss for the year amounting to AEBUWEREEEERRSFEEERRSF
approximately HK$1,686,000 for iKanTV and HD Production. [EE1E491,686,0008 7T © RERRFTEEL
The accumulated losses not recognised were approximately 1,686,000/ T °

HK$1,686,000.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. BWEBSHREMEKRRIE

Group Company
AEE AATF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF —E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Trade receivables FERE S 2,693 8,037 - =
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FERFUE « & &
other receivables Eo A R GRIE
(note (a) and (b)) (K15t@) k(b)) 74,444 91,872 505 366
77,137 99,909 505 366
Notes: Hiat -
(a) Included consideration receivable for the disposal of First Union of (a) BRERHESHMEKR —BBILIE=H 2REL

approximately HK$29,000,000 (2009: HK$30,000,000) due from an
independent third party. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 31 December 2010.

(b) As at 30 June 2009, other receivables included loans to unrelated
third parties of approximately HK$4,700,000 which were unsecured,
bore interest at the prevailing Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2%
p.a. and repayable within 12 months.

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally are 30 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the Directors.

29,000,000/ 7T (=FZF AL 30,000,000/ 7T)
ZHBEREER RBERER-T—ZTF+=A
=t+—HBEE-

b) RZZBEThEANA=+AH HEKFERER
MRAEE = H{EH 2 B3 44,700,000 T © A
B SFEERERESREEREM2ETER
R12ERREE -

AEBEEEFPZESGHRERURET U
17 EAH—RAR30A - REEBERZES
RMEERWFIR - EETFHRTBIARNELR -
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21.

88

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont'd) 21.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

W E 53Kk H WIS (@)
FEW R 5 EIR B E B EINR BB Y BRR ST
—F g

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-—FF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT
Current to 30 days BNEAZ=30H 1,991 7,890
31 -60 days 31HZ=60H 606 -
61 —90 days 61THZE90H 96 113
Over 90 days HBAE0H = 34
2,693 8,037

As of 30 June 2010, trade receivables of approximately
HK$702,000 (2009: HK$147,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

RZT—TFRA=+H " BHEXRBEZ
FEWE 534 A702,0008 T ( —ETNF -
147,000 7T) - ZERNE HREL LW ER
FEr BUEPAR - HEREATET ¢

Group

REH
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
31 -60 days 31THZE60H 606 —
61 - 90 days 61HE90H 96 113
Over 90 days HBE0H = 34
702 147
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont'd) 21. BWE SRR E M EWER (8)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are KEBEEWE FHREEN T ESEH

denominated in the following currencies:

2010 2009

—E-2F —EENEF

HK$'000 HK$’'000

THET FAT

Hong Kong dollars BT = 36

RMB ARE 2,693 8,001

Total &5t 2,693 8,037

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 22. RITRREERF

As at 30 June 2010, the bank and cash balances of the RZE—ZTFEA=1H KEBNUARE:

Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately B2 RITRIBS &7 541,098,000 T (=F

HK$1,098,000 (2009: HK$1,490,000). Conversion of RMB into ZNEF ¢ 1,490,00087T) o AR ik RINE

foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange BZREINESIEED LLEE « EERNES
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and IR TER B o

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ERNESRREMERTIE
Group Company
AEE ¥ /N

2010 2009 2010 2009
—¥-8F “TTNF C¥-BF “ITENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables JERTE B 290 16,330 - -
Other payables H e 708 14,013 15,707 3,293 5,922
14,303 32,037 3,293 5,922
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont'd)

24,

90

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

23.

B E SRRk E b EAFIE @)
BEBEEE Y ENESHERAITNT

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-—FF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current to 30 days BNEAZ=30H 67 3,787
31 -60 days 31—60H = 12,543
61 —90 days 61—90H 79 -
91 - 365 days 91—365H = -
Over 365 days HHiE365H 144 -
290 16,330

The Group’s trade payables are denominated in RMB as at 30
June 2009 and 2010.

AEBRZZEZNFRZZE—TFRA
ZENBITANRBEHE o

+A

BORROWINGS 24. BE
Group Company
rEH PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-85 C"TINF -B-BF _—TIAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FTHT T
Loan from a related company 2B —REEQA R 2 &R = 9,000 - -
Other loans HiER 1,695 4,413 1,523 1,523
1,695 13,413 1,523 1,523
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24. BORROWINGS (cont'd)
The borrowings are repayable

On demand or within

NA=TRLEFE

as follows:

BERR—FA

e
HK$'000
FBT

24. EEum)
EEAR AT EAREE

Group

2010
—p-2F
HK$°000
FiE

2010 2009
—TTNF
HK$'000

FHT

Company

REE PN

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FAT

one year 1,695 4,413 1,523 1,523
In the second year FF - 9,000 -
1,695 13,413 1,523 1,523
Less: Amount due for o 1218 AR EIHR
settlement within BB 258
12 months (RREaE®E
(shown under THIER)
current liabilities) (1,695) (4,413) (1,523) (1,523)
Amount due for settlement 121# A& ZI|8A(E 18 ~ 5508
after 12 months - 9,000 - -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are AEEEEZEREENTIIEEEE

denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong

dollars RMB Total
BT N &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FAT FAT

2010 —B—BF
Other loans HEER 1,523 172 1,695

2009 —ETNF
Loan from a related company KE—EEARZER 9,000 - 9,000
Other loans HMER 4,005 408 4,413
13,005 408 13,413

The Company’s borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong

dollars as at 30 June 2009 an

d 2010.

jull

(H
=]

Z

) W

T ABTTEE o

.

TEPIMKBEEERA

—T-TEER

RRARR -_ZZNFR -_ZE-FTFA=+H
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24. BORROWINGS (cont'd)
The average interest rates at 30 June were as follows:

24,

L E )
RANAZ+RZFEFERRNT

25.

Loan from a related company KE—EBEEARZER N/ATE A 15.0%
Other loans HEER 0.0% 1.4%
CONVERTIBLE LOANS 25. ARRER

The convertible loan notes were issued on 26 February 2010. AMBRERERR_T—TF_A=+H
The notes are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company BT ZERBUEERETHBRZEENH

at any time between the date of issue of the notes and their
settlement date. The loan notes were convertible at 6,250,000
shares per HK$1,000,000 loan note.

If the notes have not been converted, they will be redeemed
at par on 25 February 2012. Interest of 4 per cent will be paid
annually up until that settlement date.

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible
loan notes have been split between the liability element and an
equity component, as follows:

HHRE MR L RARAR T ER - &)
1,000,0007% 7T 2 B 3R 2 & 1] #1324 6,250,000
I B o

HWxERBELREHR R _F——F_H
“tHRZEERER - SFEXAENE
HEEEMAH-

BOTAMBREREBZAERIBEFHEL AAE
BBin R Es Bl - EHIAOT

2010
—z-%%
HK$'000
TExT
Nominal value of convertible loan notes issued BETRRERRE 2 HE 9,800
Equity component D (27)
Liability component at date of issue REITRBZ BEHD 9,773
Interest charged FMEEA 139
Liability component at 30 June 2010 R-ZE—ZTFXAZ+RAZAESH 9,912

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of 4.15 per cent to the liability component
for the 4 months period since the loan notes were issued.

The Directors estimate the fair value of the liability component of
the convertible loan notes at 30 June 2010 to be approximately
HK$10,038,000. This fair value has been calculated by
discounting the future cash flows at the market rate.
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BRI RBREREREEIIR-_E—Z
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26.

L€

2010
—E-BF

2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
FET

Authorised: ERE
20,000,000,000 (2009: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZZZ A4 : 20,000,000,0000%)
Ah@ﬁom%nzgﬁh 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,149,285,000 (2009: 1,099,285,000) 1,149,285,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZZFZTNHF :1,099,285,0006%)
FRREEC.0E L Ak 11,493 10,993

A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year is as follows:

ARBEBETRANAFEZEHREILT

Number of
shares Par value
REE HE
‘000 HK$'000
TFh% T
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZN\FLHA—H 1,049,285 10,493
Shares issued for acquisition of BATIRD LAUS BB BT 8 A A
subsidiaries (note (a)) (K1at@)) 50,000 500
At 30 June 2009 and 1 July 2009 RZZEZNFARAA=ZTAHEK
RZZEZNFELA—H 1,099,285 10,993
Exercise of warrants (note (b)) 1T RARHEE (HTaEmb)) 50,000 500
At 30 June 2010 R-Z—ZTFA=1+H 1,149,285 11,493
Notes: Hiat -

(a) On 25 September 2008, 50,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition of a
subsidiary, L&L Partners’. The value of those 50,000,000 shares issued
was determined by reference to the published price of each share of
HK$0.232 at the date of issue.

(b) During the year end 30 June 2010, the subscription rights attaching
to 50,000,000 warrants were exercised at the subscription price
of HK$0.20 per share, resulting in the issue of 50,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each for a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$10,000,000.

TEPIMKBEEERA

(a) RZZZN\FAA=Z+FHB - %4750,000,000%
SREBONVETZIBRNG - EAKEMHERR
L&L Partners' 2 #H (B 5255 2 37750,000,000
et 2 BEDSEREITERERBRHZEA
MH{ES0.2328 LEE °

(b) Eki —ZFXRA=1+HBIFE 50,000,000

%"*WMZ REEC IS RAEE0.20%

mﬂi %I@zﬁfﬁso 000,000 % & R E{E0.017%8

L2 EEAE - IS RBEAREELY10,000,00078 7T
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26.

94

NA=ZTRLEFE

SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

Warrants

On 6 May 2009, the Company announced the issuance
of 210,000,000 warrants at an issue price of HK$0.0025
per warrant which entitle the holders to subscribe for up
t0 210,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.20 per share for a period of two years
commencing from the date of issue of the warrants.

On 26 February 2010, the Company announced the issuance
of 64,000,000 warrants at an issue price of HK$0.003125
per warrant which entitle the holders to subscribe for up to
64,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price
of HK$0.16 per share for a period of two years commencing
from the date of issue of the warrants. None of the warrants
were exercised during the year ended 30 June 2010.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

(i)  to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes
during the years ended 30 June 2009 and 2010.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which
is calculated as total borrowings over total assets. The Group’s
strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate level.
The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2010 was 12% (2009: 12%).
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26.

PR ()

AR EE

RZZEZAFERANB  ANAREMH @ REIT
B0 RIEHERE0.002578 7T 2£17210,000,0001%
RREE - BTRHEAREN  RRREZET
A EARB ST MBI IR T R B B AR AR 0.207%
TLREE%210,000,0000% &2 &) E M o

%

ZZEZ-ZFZAZ+RA RRFEM
RBETEE M RKREF 0.003125 8 T #HAT
64,000 ooofﬁ RAxHEE - B TRA AR R
R EEE H%tﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁt
A& AR 15 0. 16,%m B8 £ % 64,000,000 f& AN A
TR - HE—_T—ZTF A= JFEHtEr
PE BRI TE -

REEEREARRZ BRR

() #HBASERELEZES  BUSHA#
ﬁtﬁﬂ&?’*X@#&&ﬁEﬁﬂ% RS PN
P

(i) AEREREE@MR -

AEBEREAEE  LHERELBER R RIAH
BERBREEIELHE - BARFAABERE
B AREAHARABRRKNZRESHE
ARFREEAR  BTHRN - AHEBEER
B-BE_ZTTALR T -FFXA=THIL
FE MEFRER  BRMEF -

AEERBELREZER  HREEAERR
L‘N@EF%E o REBRB MR B ELER

WEKFE - R-ZE—ZTFEXA=FTH BERK
ERN2%B(ZFTNF 1 12%) °
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27.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share option scheme adopted in 2002

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the
Company (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to
any employees, Directors, shareholders, suppliers, customers
of the Group and any other person or company who has
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company at any
price which is at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of the grant of the options;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where the limit is refreshed. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each eligible person under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by
the shareholders in general meeting.

27.

B
RIBZEZFRAZBRESS
REZETZ-FHA-THB » ARFRAER
B (T2 _FEREE ) - Bt - &
REAEFGUNAKEEMNREE - EF K
R-#Esm  FPREMEEKAEHEAEE
ZBERPIBERFHERMZEMALTHARRH
%W%'Tﬁ&ﬂﬁ%%%K@ﬂ%@'ﬁ%
BRMIER A TR COREREERES R
AR WTE m%%%&ﬁ%hf”
A ALAEZZ 5 B AR BB 40 FE R 32 A 2 P39 MR
B R(iNARARROEE - RE_FT_FH
g B R LB S ke R &= EE
TEHEAE-_TT _FRRETEERAE AL
%h%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (cont'd) 27. BREm
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont'd) R-BE-FHMHZEBRETE(E)
Details of the share options outstanding during the current year RERNBARITEBIE ZFIBHT -

are as follows:

Number of Number of
share options Number of share options
outstanding  share options outstanding
Name or category asat lapsed during Reclassification as at
of grantees Date of grant 1 July 2009 the year (note (b)) 30 June 2010 Exercise price  Exercise period
R=BENF R=B-2fF
tA-H AA=TH
ERA AR  REREEAN EEipE] AT Z
HEIHE BiHAH BREZE ZBREHE (W) EBREHA e 7S
Directors
Bz
Mr. Lu Liang 29 November 2007 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.64 29 November 2007 -
mREE “ERHE+-AZTNA 28 November 2017
ZETHET-AZThAZ
TtEt-AZT/\B
Mr. Chan Sing Fai (note (3)) 29 November 2007 2,200,000 (2,200,000) - - 0.64 29 November 2007 -
BABLE(Hit) i e s s D! 28 November 2017
“ITLET-A-TARE
ZE—tET-AZTNH
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard 29 November 2007 - - 8,403,175 8,403,175 0.64 29 November 2007 -
(note (b)) “ERHE+-AZTNA 28 November 2017
BUARE WD) “ESHET-AZtNREZ
i
Employees 29 November 2007 8,850,000 (500,000) (2,200,000 6,150,000 0.64 29 November 2007 -
&8 “EERE+-A-TAA 28 November 2017
“ETLET-A-THARE
ZE—tET-AZTNH
27 June 2008 4,530,000 (460,000) N 4,070,000 0.64 27 June 2008 -
ZER\EARAZTLA 26 June 2018
T \FRAZTLRZE
ZE-\FRRZTH
Consultants 29 November 2007 39,062,700 - (6,203,175) 32,859,525 0.64 29 November 2007 -
B “ERLET-ACTAR 28 November 2017
“ETLET-A-THARE
ZE—tET-AZTNH
27 June 2008 30,970,000 N N 30,970,000 0.64 27 June 2008 -
ZER\EAAZTLA 26 June 2018
T \FRAZTLRZE
- \FRRZTH
88,812,700 (3,160,000) - 85,652,700
Notes: it -
(a) Mr. Chan Sing Fai retired on 9 December 2009. (a) REBEAER-_TTAF+_ANARET -
(b)  Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard was appointed as Director of the (b) HUAAER —_ZTZNFT_ATRAEZEA
Company on 15 December 2009. NNFEE o
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (cont'd) 27. BBRE@m)

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average

share options exercise price  share options  exercise price
BREHE METHTEE RS R  InETIaTTRE
HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Outstanding at beginning RER M A TE

of year 88,812,700 0.64 88,812,700 0.64
Lapsed during the year FRRK (3,160,000) 0.64 - -
Outstanding at end of year ~ RELREKITE 85,652,700 0.64 88,812,700 0.64
Exercisable at end of year RELLR] F171E 85,652,700 0.64 88,812,700 0.64
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted RE AR ARIT I BB AR 2 DN IO RIRE K05
remaining contractual life of 7.6 years (2009: 8.6 years) and the HA76F(ZZTNF  8.6%F)  1T#EA0.64
exercise price is HK$0.64 (2009: HK$0.64). BIL(ZZEZNF  0.64ETT) ©
No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled under FAN - CERCFRREIIA T EERE
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year. R - 1T -

28. RESERVES 28. f#fE
(a) Group (a) F&£H
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REERBLERBTRESNGRETEE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of AR REFEERFHRET -

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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28. RESERVES (cont'd) 28. f@E@
(b) Company (b) ZA&RQF

Share-based Convertible
Share payment Warrants loans Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
DRHAER

RtEE  ARezRE IRERRE TRRERREE 2itER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL BT TAL ThL

At 1July 2008 RZZZN\F+A—R 805,946 21,386 - - (746,254) 81,078
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (61,926) (61,926)
Shares issued for acquisition BRI AR

of subsidiaries N 11,100 - - - - 11,100
Issue of warrants TRRER - - 525 - - 525
At 30 June 2009 and RZZZNERAZTER

1 July 2009 “ZENELA-A 817,046 21,386 525 - (808,180) 30,777
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (690) (690)
Issue of warrants TRER - - 200 - - 200
Share issued upon exercise of 7B RMEEREETRN

warrants 9,625 - (125) - - 9,500
Share options lapsed ERFI BIRE

during the year - (940) - - 940 -
Equity component of AARETER T

convertible loans (note 25) (Hi#25) - - - 27 - 27
At 30 June 2010 RZE-ZE:A=1H 826,671 20,446 600 27 (807,930) 39,814
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28. RESERVES (cont'd)

(o)

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium account

Under section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company can be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus
shares or in providing for the premiums payable on
repurchase of shares.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to the eligible
participants recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 3(t) to the financial
statements.

Warrants reserve

The warrants reserve represents the value of the
unexercised warrants issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity instrument in note 3(q) to the
financial statements.

Convertible loans reserve

The convertible loans reserve represents the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible
notes issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for convertible loans in note 3(o) to the financial
statements.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(d) to the
financial statements.

48 (@)
(0 MHEZMEREN
() REHEE

RIBEBDRERIF48B1E - AD
ARMHEERETESTARENE
ARABRBUBBABE R ETZ
REBEITRAD BR FAR T RE E A
RS 2B 1E -

28.

(i) HROBEEGHZHE
VAR fn REREN R 2 R IR IERS
TR M RE3(t) AR E A E I A
Bedn R 2T Z 8 RPTERR & 5T IR
B RAAERZEALERHER
RTEZ B EER A8
RZRFE -

AR

R E B R R IR M I IR MY A
() BBRA T EFRMEETBOR
AR EEITIE R ARITR Z B
EWER2EE -

(iii)

GIE- .94

AR E SR EEREM SRR
AE3(0) Bt AT A B SR TR B AT IR
R ARBCEITERRTEZA
BRI SE ITER 2 EE

(iv)

() EXRE
[E S R Bl ERE IR
BRAELZMAELEZRE - [l
IRIE A T 5 R M RE 3(d) P 2 & &t
BURBZIE °
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

100

(a)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

As referred to in note 11 to the financial statements, on
30 September 2009, the Group discontinued its operation
of provision of television advertising services in Hong
Kong upon the disposal of 4% interests in iKanTV.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows:

29.

RERERBRMEE

(a) HEWBAF
W BERRME N - RZFZA
FAA=TH AEERHEETER
A% (R - RIEERBBRHEGES

AR5 2 %75 -

REERBZ B EFELT

HK$'000
FET

Property, plant and equipment L E e 1.211
Trade and other receivables FEME 550 K B A FEUR R IR 623
Bank and cash balances RITRREHET 1,016
Trade and other payables FERTE 530 S ELh FE A SR IE (1,529)
Due to a fellow subsidiary JFE— R & T BB A RIFIE (7,099)
Net liabilities at date of disposal REEHHZz8EFHE (5.778)
Non-controlling interests FEIEARRE RS 2,955
Net liabilities disposed of HEaEFR (2,823)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ST E A Rl 12,023
Total consideration RERE 9,200
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE 7RSSR -

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSMNERIBSER (1,016)

The consideration was set off against the loan from a
related company of approximately HK$9,000,000 and
interest payable of approximately HK$200,000 included
in other payables. iKanTV and HD Production became
associates of the Company thereafter.

At date of disposal, the fair value of investments in
associates retained was nil.

Major non-cash transaction
During the year, borrowings of approximately
HK$1,600,000 and HK$1,952,000 were settled by
offsetting against the loans to unrelated third parties and
other receivables respectively.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31.

Financial guarantees issued
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contingent
liabilities as follows:

Possible claims arising from: Al REBELER -
Guarantee related to a former related BEREEAT 2 ER

30. HAREE

BB M ERER
RBEMEEER - AREE THRABE

2010
—E-BF

2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FET

company (note (a)) (Hfit(a)) 5,000 5,000
Indemnity related to a former subsidiary ~ HREARIME A F 2 HE
(note 31(b)) (K1:#31b)) 7,015 6,906
12,015 11,906
Note: i
(@)  The Company issued a corporate guarantee to secure a leasing facility (@ ARFBHADERAE —MHEEQRTNERT

granted by a leasing company to a former related company.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Group
or the Company under any of the above possible claims.

PENDING LITIGATIONS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
pending litigations:

(@ In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on
the Company by an individual third party demanding
immediate repayment of borrowings of approximately
HK$1,600,000 together with the interest thereon. As the
Company had never borrowed money from that individual
third party, the Directors were of the opinion that the
Company had no obligation to pay the demanded
amount. In January 2005, an Amended Writ of Summons
was served on the Company by the lender of the Group
to clarify that the individual third party acted as an agent
of the lender. The Directors have instructed the lawyer of
the Company to handle this matter. The loan advanced
by the lender together with interest and penalty totalling
approximately HK$2,672,000 has been accrued in the
financial statements and has not yet been settled as at 30
June 2010.

31.

FEIFIMEREEB AR AT

—FIREERRZHERE -

RIEHHEER  EFRR - st LA ERA
BRREMS  TAWESHAEERARAIR
HRE -

el R T 45 A
RREHRRBEER - KEBBATHAHRT

+ .
&

() ZTZEMFNA —RBEAZ=FEEAR
A HEE - ZREVEEE 41,600,000
BT BB RABBFE - BRARBIHRAE
MZAEAE = HEATRIE - BitE
ERABARRBAINAEREEZX
HeRZZETRF—A  AEEZERA
MARRELEEFI 2 ER - BE%AE
AEB=ZFABEFRAZRIE - EFEHETA
ANRIZMERILEE - ERAFMEHRER
HREFERERE H492,672,0008 T2
ARKHRE  BR-_E—TFE A=+
HERER -
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31.

102

PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont'd)

(a)

(cont’d)

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die
the plaintiffs’ application to set down this case on 15
March 2006. That is to say, the lender and its agent
have temporarily withheld the proceedings against the
Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these financial statements.

According to an agreement entered into by the Company,
two of its subsidiaries and two independent third parties
in February 2003, the Group had disposed of a subsidiary,
World Giant Limited (“World Giant”), a company engaged
in property investment in the PRC. In this connection,
the Company has undertaken to indemnify World Giant
for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World
Giant as a result of any claim for taxation arising from
any transactions effected on or before the completion
date of the above disposal. In October 2004, World Giant
received a payment request from the PRC tax authority in
respect of PRC property taxes relating to the property held
by World Giant, including the late payment surcharge
levied by the tax authority, of which an amount of
approximately RMB6,100,000 related to transactions on
or before the completion date. The existing management
of World Giant had indicated to the Directors that the
amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company. In
February 2005, a Writ of Summons was served on the
Company demanding the payment of approximately
RMB6,100,000. However, such amounts were covered
by the amount accrued in the financial statements of
World Giant at the time of disposal. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the Directors and having obtained an opinion
from the Company’s lawyer, the Group or the Company
has no obligation to pay the above taxes. Because of the
uncertainty of the outcome of this matter, the amount
involved of approximately RMB6,100,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$7,015,000 (2009: HK$6,906,000), has
been shown as contingent liabilities in note 30.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in
February 2005. The Company has not received further
claims from the plaintiff up to the date of approval of
these financial statements.
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2010, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

32. BEMERE
R=B—BEXA=+A  BRETTREEE
FHER THI BRI 2 KRB R S ASE

T~

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET THETT
Within one year —FR 4,922 17,780
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFERF(RIETEEMT) 3,165 190
8,087 17,970

At 30 June 2010, the total future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-
leases amounted an approximately HK$12,766,000 (2009:
HK$10,549,000)

Operating lease payments represented rental payables by the
Group for certain of its offices, office equipment and billboards.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranged from 3 months to 5
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not
include contingent rentals.

RZZE—ZFNA=Z+H  RETTREEZD
MAEEMBHRRRWE 2 ZESHEREL B
12,766,000 70 ( ZZZ AL4F : 10,549,000 7%
JL) °

LEHEFEBEARBEREETHAE BA
ERERPIESRENES - HEZFH
NF=EAZLF MR EEFHNETE
ATERmAEE -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had

33. FEALXS
R BREEMIBOMBEECREALRSR
BRI FRAREEEEBEATET TR

the following transactions with its related parties during the 5
year:
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest income received from an associate ¢ — 1B 2 FULERFI B0 A 447 -
Referral income received from an associate 7 — RiBih 42 E) U EREE N A 25 -
Consultancy fee paid to a related company [f)— B8 :# A & B st < a2
(note (a)) (K@) 439 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary H—EEEAFTMEILE
received from a related company (note (b))  —FEHIEB A R ATS A (FiFEb)) 9,200 -
Outdoor media advertising and media W—RERE AR ER S IMEREEE N
related service income received from 1R EE MR ARSI (M 5E(b))
a related company (note (b)) = 21
Referral income received from e — R E A RIS WA (B 3E(b))
a related company (note (b)) = 500
Interest expense paid to a related A — A B A B AT AL B RS2 (B EE(b))
company (note (b)) 340 492

Notes:

(a) A Director, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard, has significant influence over
the related company and is a Director and a substantial shareholder
of the related company.

(b) A Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, has significant influence over

the related company and is a Director and a substantial shareholder
of the related company.
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34,

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

34. BEAXEE
RIBEHIREE R - ANEE Y B REBIT -

2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHBIT
Contracted but not provided for: EETAVB RS -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(a)) Wb — FEIFT 8 2 B (A7 35(a)) 1,241,890 -
Contingent consideration for the Wi — B A R 2 AR E (At (a)

acquisition of a subsidiary (note (a))

= 200,000

Note:

(a) The condition for the contingent consideration for the acquisition of
L&L Partners’ on 25 September 2008 could not be met. Therefore, the
contingent consideration was no longer payable as at 30 June 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 4 December 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement to acquire the entire issued share capital
of GMG Media Group Limited (“"GMG Media"”) at a
consideration of HK$1,241,890,000, satisfied by (i) the
allotment and issuance of 100,000,000 new shares
of the Company, credited as fully paid, in the sum of
HK$13,000,000; and (i) the issuance of convertible loan
notes, carrying no interest for a term of 5 years at a
conversion price of HK$0.13 for each new share of the
Company, in the principal amount of HK$1,228,890,000.
GMG Media was principally engaged in investment
holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in operating chain
broadcasting networks of large-screen television channels
at shopping malls and department stores in the PRC.

The acquisition was approved by the shareholders on 19
April 2010 and completed on 22 July 2010. Details of
acquisition are set out in a circular issued by the Company
on 26 March 2010 and announcements dated 26 February
2010,19 April 2010, 27 April 2010 and 22 July 2010.

G

(a) REZZFZN\FNA=+FHHUWELLL Partners’ 7 3¢
AREBREEZEER - Bt - KARER =T —
TEXNA=TBETBARMNRIE -

35. KERESEHE

(@ RZTEZENF+-AWA  AEBEFT
S U EGMG Media Group Limited
(TGMG Medial) 2 EBITRA - RE
4 1,241,890,000%8 7T + WA T35 =
B ()E BB RBEITARINIEZR
2.100,000,000 fx AN A RIFT IR 0 - 4280
13,000,000 7T « K (i) FEBRBEITAELH
1,228,890,000/8 7T 2 T &t B A F Hf Al 34
RERER @ TRRERERAIZLIR
BER0.13B T RIRA R T —ARFTRD
GMG Mediax= 2 FIREEREY - A
MEBARNTERELESRAEEE
[FERIRE 2 BHERERRER -

WEER=ZZT—TFMA+ L AERE
B WRZE-TFEA- T BTN -
BRAWEZFBHEN RTINS —ZF
AT RBEBHzER LA R -E—
TFE_A=Z+/H  ZE-ZFNA+A
B —Z—ZFNMA-_++AKR-ZT—F
FE+A-+-BZRABRA -
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35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (cont'd)

36.

37.

106

(a)

(cont'd)

As the Group has not yet completed the fair value
determination of the acquired companies’ identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the acquisition
date, the disclosure of such amounts and amount of
goodwill is impracticable.

On 13 August 2010, the Company and Fully Wealthy Inc.
(the “Bondholder”) entered into a deed (the “Deed”) to
alter and restate the terms of convertible loan notes in the
principal amount of HK$1,228.9 million. On 17 August
2010, the Company and the Bondholder entered into a
supplemental deed to amend certain terms of the Deed.
The Deed and supplemental deed were approved by the
shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 15 September 2010. Details of the amendments are
set out in a circular issued by the Company on 29 August
2010 and announcements dated 13 August 2010, 17
August 2010, 29 August 2010 and 15 September 2010.

On 5 October 2010, the Bondholder exercised the
conversion right to convert the convertible loan notes in
the principal amount of HK$65,000,000 into 500,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company.

On 26 August 2010 and 18 October 2010, a total of
15,000,000 warrants were exercised by the warrant
holders for the issuance of 15,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.2 per share. All the
subscribed ordinary shares were issued and fully paid.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the presentation of HKFRS 5.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 22 October 2010.
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35.

36.

37.

EEHEEE@E)

(a)

(b)

()
MR AEEHATREERBAR - A
REE  BERIABERKBRHZA
FE AREMHESBEZREATH
T

RZTE—ZFTFN\A+=0 A AH
Fully Wealthy Inc. (5B AL)ETAL
LE(RZE])  UERRENASER
1,228,890,000/8 7T Z AI MR B R ERE 2
R e RZZE—ZFNA++EH  AQ7A
EEHIFE AR R RE - DUEFTRIE
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFEMBGEE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets

and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the note

below:

Year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

AT RASERTIMEMSBEERE B TIHES
REEEABHE :

(Restated)
(&%)
2010 2008 2007 2006
—E-EF TTEN\F —TELF —ZTTF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAIT FHET FAT
RESULTS ES
Turnover B
From continuing operations BB LT 23,698 37,681 5,694 - -
From discontinued operations B R E TS 1,403 9,847 10,117 11,224 43,337
25,101 47,528 15,811 11,224 43,337
(Loss)/profit before tax MFIRT(EE) a A (22,135) (31,023) (63,035) (13,657) 3,671
Income tax expense FTiSBiF X (38) (2,319) - - -
(Loss)/profit from continuing B AT
operations (E18) %A (22,173) (33,342) (63,035) (13,657) 3,671
Profit/(loss) from discontinued AR P AR HE TG
operations smAl/ (EE) 10,840 (16,614) 7,939 1,788 (27,666)
Loss for the year REFEEEIE (11,333) (49,956) (55,096) (11,869) (23,995)
Attributable to: AR AL FEAG -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ZEN (10,032) (46,936) (55,096) (11,869) (23,995)
Non-controlling interests IR e (1,301) (3,020) - - -
(11,333) (49,956) (55,096) (11,869) (23,995)
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At 30 June
MAB=1+H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-2F —TTHF —_TTNF —_TTLF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT T T T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets JEMBEE 6,148 6,801 110,458 13,593 318
Current assets MENEE 87,870 104,456 40,279 16,813 47,173
Non-current liabilities JEREERE (9,912) (9,000) (1,822) (13,371) (33,201)
Current liabilities mENBE (18,318) (38,723) (44,763) (21,620) (7,006)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8f%)FE 65,788 63,534 104,152 (4,585) 7,284
Attributable to: FE(L -
Owners of the Company RRalEB A 67,153 66,553 104,152 (4,585) 7,284
Non-controlling interests eI (1,365) (3,019) - - -
65,788 63,534 104,152 (4,585) 7,284
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Unit 1808, 18th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
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